
BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES 

Michelle Draper 
Board Chair  

Ray Martin 
Board Vice-Chair 

Sherry Adams 
Orville Chubb 
Ken Gibson 
Nathan Ip 
Michael Janz 
Cheryl Johner 
Bridget Stirling 

Edmonton School District No. 7 
One Kingsway 

Edmonton, Alberta 

McCauley Chambers 
Board Meeting #13 Tuesday, April 25, 2017 

2:00 p.m. 

A.  O Canada 

B.  Roll Call 

C.  Approval of the Agenda 

D.  Communications from the Board Chair 

E.  Communications from the Superintendent of Schools 

F.  Minutes: 

1. DRAFT – Board Meeting #12  – April 11, 2017

G.  Comments from the Public and Staff Group Representatives 
(NOTE:  Pre-registration with the Board Office [780-429-8443] is 
required by 4:30 p.m. on Monday, April 24, 2017 to speak under this 
item.)  

H.  Reports: 

2. Strategic Plan Update:  Priority 3 Goal Two-Supports 
for the Whole Child (Information – Presentation) 
Note:  30 minutes is required for this item.

3. Distribution of Funds
(Recommendation)

4. Three-Year Capital Plan 2018-2021
(Recommendation)

5. Motion re Sexual Health Education in Provincial Curriculum
(Recommendation)

6. Motion re Funding for the Design of Two High Schools
(Recommendation)

7. First Reading, Board Policy ACB.BP National Anthem and Flag
(Recommendation)

1 of 2 

Page 1 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



8. First Reading, Policy FBD.BP Designated Holidays
(Recommendation)

9. Catholic Faith Alternative Program
(Information – Response to Request for Information #205)

I.  Comments from the Public and Staff Group Representatives – 5:00 p.m.  
(NOTE:  Pre-registration with the Board Office [780-429-8443] is required by 
4:30 p.m. on Monday, April 24, 2017 to speak under this item.) 

J.  Other Committee, Board Representative and Trustee Reports 

K.  Trustee and Board Requests for Information 

L.  Notices of Motion 

M.  Meeting Dates 

N.  Adjournment 

2 of 2 

Page 2 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Edmonton School District No. 7 

MINUTE BOOK 

1 
April 11, 2017 

Board Meeting #12 

Minutes of the Board Meeting of the Trustees of the Edmonton School District No. 7 of the 
Province of Alberta held in McCauley Chambers in the Centre for Education on  
Tuesday, April 11, 2017, at 2:00 p.m. 

Present: 
Trustees 

Sherry Adams 
Orville Chubb 

Michelle Draper 

Ken Gibson 
Nathan Ip 

Michael Janz 

Cheryl Johner 
Bridget Stirling 

Officials 

Lisa Austin 
Angela Anderson 

Grace Cooke 
Todd Burnstad 

Ron MacNeil 
Karen Mills 

Kathy Muhlethaler 
Lorne Parker 

Kent Pharis 
Darrel Robertson 

Board Chair:   Michelle Draper Recording Secretary:  Shirley Juneau 

Staff Group Representatives 

Edmonton Public Teachers – Nels Olsen, President 

The Board Chair called the meeting to order with recognition that we are on Treaty 6 Territory, a 
traditional meeting grounds, gathering place, and travelling route to the Cree, Saulteaux, 
Blackfoot, Métis, Dene and Nakota Sioux.  We acknowledge all the many First Nations, Métis, and 
Inuit whose footsteps have marked these lands for centuries. 

The Board Chair advised that the firm alarm system at the Centre for Education is a Two Stage 
alarm system.  Stage One is a single repeating alarm tone indicating a warning only and that 
evacuation is not required.  Stage Two is a triple repeating alarm tone indicating that evacuation is 
required. 

A.    O Canada  

B. Roll Call:  (2:00 p.m.) 

The Superintendent advised that Trustee Martin was absent.   All other Trustees were present. 

Page 3 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Edmonton School District No. 7 

MINUTE BOOK 

2 
April 11, 2017 

C. Approval of the Agenda 

MOVED BY Trustee Chubb: 
“That the agenda for the April 11, 2017, board meeting be approved as printed.”  
(UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 

D. Communications from the Board Chair 

The Board Chair advised that April 22nd is International Earth Day which is the largest, most 
celebrated environmental event worldwide and that several years ago, the Board identified Earth 
Day and Week as an initiative to promote within the District.   

The Board Chair reported she was delighted to bring greetings, along with Trustee Stirling, at the 
welcome reception for the Languages Without Borders National Conference on April 6, 2017.  She 
explained that this was the 6th annual conference, and that it connected second language 
educators from across Canada to learn the latest methods and research in second language 
learning.  

The Board Chair shared that Edmonton Public Schools’ Institute for Innovation in Second Language 
Education helped organize the conference this year in partnership with the Canadian Association 
of Second Language Teachers (CASLT).  She advised that the District has seven bilingual programs, 
11 second language courses and an extensive French Immersion Program. The Board Chair 
reported that 48,500 students are enrolled in one of the District’s language programs, which 
indicates that nearly half of the District’s students are gaining second language skills.  

The Board Chair advised that the diverse range of programming is made possible through the 
Institute of Second Language Education and the partnerships it has made with other organizations 
around the globe.  On behalf of the Board, she thanked everyone involved in making this event 
possible.  

E. Communications from the Superintendent of Schools 

The Superintendent reported that on March 23, 2017, nine Elders and Knowledge Keepers 
gathered to share their perspectives on how the District can improve student success and 
achievement for First Nations, Métis, and Inuit junior high students.   

The Superintendent explained that each of the invited Elders and Knowledge Keepers had an 
opportunity to share their personal experiences and offer cultural teachings with all of the 
participants.   

The Superintendent thanked principals Brad Burns and Fred Hines and the District’s First Nations, 
Métis, and Inuit Education department who collaborated to organize and host this opportunity at 
the Languages Centre at Woodcroft.   

Page 4 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Edmonton School District No. 7 

MINUTE BOOK 

3 
April 11, 2017 

The Superintendent advised that the District is working with the province on the Regulation that 
outlines the specifics of Bill 1, the Act to Reduce School Fees.  He explained that there are a lot 
of details still not known and that he is looking forward to providing clarity to staff, students 
and parents as information is received. 

The Superintendent  thanked the staff, students and volunteers of Vimy Ridge Academy and the 
Centre for Global Education for the outstanding program they produced to commemorate the 
100th anniversary of the Battle of Vimy Ridge.  The Superintendent shared that he had the 
pleasure of attending this event along with Board Chair Draper and Trustees Chubb and Stirling. 

F. Minutes 

1. Board Meeting #11 – March 21, 2017

MOVED BY Trustee Janz: 
“That the minutes of Board Meeting #11 held March 21, 2017, be approved as 
printed.”  (UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 

G. Comments from the Public and Staff Group Representatives 

There were no registered speakers for this item. 

H. Reports 

2. Report #4 of the Caucus Committee (From the Meeting Held March 21, 2017)

Information was received regarding actions taken at the March 21, 2017, Caucus Committee 
meeting. 

3. Strategic Plan Update – Building Capacity for a Culture of Collaboration and
Distributed Leadership – Professional Growth and Development

The Trustees received a presentation regarding building capacity for a culture of collaboration, 
distributed leadership, professional growth and development.   

4. Motion re Funding for Playground – Government of Alberta 2020 Fiscal Plan

MOVED BY Trustee Draper: 
“That the Edmonton Public School Board advocate for funding of playgrounds 
committed to in the Government of Alberta’s 2020 Fiscal Plan that is proportional to 
the new schools announced.” (UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 

Page 5 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Edmonton School District No. 7 

MINUTE BOOK 

4 
April 11, 2017 

There was a short break in the meeting at this point. 

5. Motion to Close Junior High Programming at Winterburn School

MOVED BY Trustee Ip: 
“That the motion to close Grades 7-9 at Winterburn School, effective June 30, 2017, be 
approved.” (UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 

6. Bereavement – Mr. James Luke

The Board Chair reported on the passing of Mr. James Luke. 

I. Other Committee, Board Representative and Trustee Reports 

Trustee Adams reported that she recently attended the New Schools Information Night at Michael 
Strembitsky School, featuring the three new kindergarten to Grade 9 schools:  Shauna May 
Seneca, Jan Reimer and Svend Hansen in Ward I. 

Trustee Adams advised that the Shauna May Seneca School building will be ready for the students 
in January of 2018.  Until then, the staff and students will begin as planned in a designated section 
of the Jan Reimer School designated as “a school within a school” and stated this is an excellent 
solution to the problem of a construction delay.  Trustee Adams shared that Principal Carter gave 
a comprehensive presentation to a number of parents excited to hear about the new school.    

Trustee Adams shared that the Jan Reimer School will be the home of staff and students of both 
Jan Reimer and Shauna May Seneca for the first semester.  She advised that under the leadership 
of Principal Sawyer, the students will be given a team of leaders who care and work to bring the 
best out of each student.   

Trustee Adams advised that Principal Thompson presented information to the parents, students 
and staff present regarding the Svend Hansen School and shared that he is committed to build a 
strong team who will collaborate  to achieve high academic and citizenship standards and that 
values emphasized under his leadership will be a strong family feel and deliberate connection with 
parents.   

Trustee Adams indicated that parents were given opportunities to personally ask questions of 
each principal and of several District staff that were present.  She stated that the evening was a 
great success as parents had a chance to view and experience the hearts and the competence of 
the leadership for each of these schools and the dedicated work of the District that supports the 
success of all students.  She thanked everyone who made the evening so beneficial and the 
parents who took the time to take advantage of this opportunity. 

The Board Chair provided the following report on behalf of Trustee Martin: 

Page 6 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Edmonton School District No. 7 

MINUTE BOOK 

5 
April 11, 2017 

She advised that there was a recent article featured in the Rat Creek Press that profiled the Delton 
School and the Intercultural Family Nights hosted by the school. The title of the article was Delton 
School Stops Ignorance with Education.   Since January 2017, the Delton School has dedicated one 
night per month for Intercultural Family Nights.  

The first intercultural night held at Delton School shared Aboriginal culture since the school 
currently has approximately 140 students who identify as First Nation, Métis or Inuit peoples. 

Listed is a schedule of the Intercultural Family Nights: 
o February 2017 – African-Canadian culture
o March 2017 – Arabic culture
o April 2017 – Eastern European culture
o May 2017 – Asian culture
o June 2017 – A celebration of all cultures

It was explained that a City grant funds the Intercultural Night events, which helps to pay for food, 
music, and performers.  The Board Chair, on behalf of Trustee Martín, commended everyone 
involved in this initiative. 

Trustee Ip reported that on April 2, 2017, he attended Cheti Chand Day at the Hindu Cultural 
Centre. He shared that this was a very important day as it marked and celebrated the New Year on 
the Indian calendar.  He thanked the Hindu Cultural Centre for extending him the invitation. 

Trustee Ip advised that on April 4, 2017, he had the opportunity to attend the Southwest Youth 
Collaborative Meeting (SWYC).  He explained that it is a network of service providers and 
educators that serve youth in the southwest.  Trustee Ip acknowledged their work in supporting 
many Edmonton Public School students. 

Trustee Ip extended an invitation to parents and community members to the following coffee 
meetings he will be hosting jointly with the Nellie Carlson School Council on April 20, 2017, at 6:00 
p.m. and at George P. Nicholson School on April 21, 2017, at 9:00 a.m. 

Trustee Johner advised that the 7th Annual Student Spring Fashion Show Rule the Runway - will be 
held on April 27, 2017, from 5 to 8 p.m. at Kingsway Mall.  She shared that the clothing collections 
are designed and created by students from L.Y. Cairns, Harry Ainlay Jasper Place, M.E. LaZerte and 
W.P. Wagner schools.  Trustee Johner explained that this event celebrates the creative talents of 
Edmonton Public School students and is also a fundraiser to support full-day Kindergarten 
programs in Edmonton's most socially vulnerable communities.  

Trustee Stirling advised that on March 22, 2017, she was pleased to attend the Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) for the Terra Centre, an important community organization supporting 
pregnant and parenting teens and who are partners in the Braemar School program.  She 

Page 7 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Edmonton School District No. 7 

MINUTE BOOK 

6 
April 11, 2017 

shared that the Terra Centre makes it possible for young families to grow and thrive, and she’s 
always proud to support their work both in Braemar School and in the community as a whole. 

Trustee Stirling reported that on March 23, 2017, she was tremendously moved to attend the 
meeting with the Elders and Knowledge Keepers and shared her thanks to the First Nations, 
Metis and Inuit education team who made this event possible.   

Trustee Stirling thanked Board Chair Draper and Trustee Chubb, who visited Vimy Ridge 
Academy on April 6, 2017, to join in the recognition of the 100th anniversary of the Battle of 
Vimy Ridge. She thanked the many school staff and students who made the event possible. 

Trustee Stirling reported that on April 7, 2017, Advanced Education Minister Marlin Schmidt 
visited the adult English Language Learning students in the Language Instruction for Newcomers 
(LINC) program at Metro Continuing Education.  She shared that the students enjoyed having 
the chance to ask Minister Schmidt questions about education and politics in Alberta and to 
share their experiences as newcomers to Canada.  

Trustee Stirling advised that on April 8, 2017, she was pleased to attend the launch of the Child-
Friendly Housing Coalition of Alberta and to speak about the role of housing for families with 
children in supporting thriving and sustainable schools across the city, particularly in mature and 
core area communities.  She shared that Trustee Janz also attended with his family. 

J. Trustee and Board Requests for Information 

Trustee Draper asked that, given the recent provincial announcement of funding for the 
Kindergarten to Grade 6 school in Pilot Sound (McConachie), the District’s advocacy work with 
the City to explore partnerships as part of the District’s new school construction and recent 
Memorandum of Understanding with the Edmonton Public Library, that the Administration 
advise of any potential partnership opportunities to create community and school library space 
at the new school.    

K. Notices of Motion 

Trustee Ip served the following notice of motion: 

To help address the critical need for high school space, the Board of Trustees advocate to the 
Ministers of Education and Infrastructure to award funding for the design of two high schools 
this year, in advance of the next round of capital announcements.  

Trustee Stirling served the following notice of motion: 

Page 8 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
 
 

  

Edmonton School District No. 7 

 
 

MINUTE BOOK 

7 
April 11, 2017 

 

That the Board of Trustees write to the Minister of Education in support of ensuring evidence-
based, age-appropriate, medically accurate, comprehensive, consent-based, and inclusive 
sexual health education in the provincial curriculum. 
 
Additionally, that, in this letter the Board advocate for a clear set of guidelines for vetting third-
party presenters to ensure that classroom presentations are in compliance with the provincial 
sexual health curriculum and the requirements of the School Act around welcoming, caring, 
respectful and safe schools for all students, similar to the standards currently used by 
Edmonton Public Schools. 
 
L. Next Board Meeting Date:  Tuesday, April 25, 2017, at 2:00 p.m. 
 
M.    Adjournment (3:30 p.m.) 
 
The Board Chair adjourned the meeting. 
 
 
 

   
Michelle Draper, Board Chair  Karen Mills, Director of Board and 

Superintendent Relations 
   
 

Page 9 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Strategic Plan Update 

1 

DATE: April 25, 2017 

TO:  Board of Trustees 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

Darrel Robertson, Superintendent of Schools 

Strategic Plan Update: Priority 3 Goal Two—Supports for the Whole Child 

ORIGINATOR: Nancy Petersen, Acting Executive Director Governance, Strategic Services and 
Supports for Schools 

RESOURCE 
STAFF: Marnie Beaudoin, Sherelyn Caderma 

REFERENCE: N/A 

ISSUE 
The purpose of this report is to provide the Board of Trustees with an update of the District’s Strategic 
Plan for Priority 3, Goal Two—Supports for the Whole Child (Attachment I). The report provides an 
analysis of 2015 District Feedback Survey data relevant to community stakeholders as summarized in the 
Annual Education Results Report (AERR), as well as an overview of examples of school-community 
initiatives that promote wraparound supports and enrichment opportunities for students across the 
District. This report is part of administration’s commitment to providing the Board of Trustees with 
ongoing updates on progress relative to the District Strategic Plan. 

BACKGROUND 
In 2014, Edmonton Public Schools formally launched its District Strategic Plan for the 2014–2018 term. 
The District Strategic Plan has three priorities with supporting goals and outcomes. The plan serves to 
provide common direction and alignment between the work of the Board of Trustees, the 
Superintendent, and District staff. The plan provides the foundation for a District culture of evidence-
based decision making, assurance, and accountability. 

In 2015, the District joined Alberta Education’s Assurance Pilot Project. The Assurance Model provides a 
framework for the District to report directly on how we are doing relative to the goals and outcomes on 
the 2014–2018 Strategic Plan, which reflects provincial educational priorities while being responsive to 
local priorities. 

CURRENT SITUATION 
Each year, Alberta Education requires school jurisdictions to submit a Three-Year Education Plan (3YEP) 
and an AERR by November 30. The 3YEP/AERR reports on results from the previous school year and 
highlights the District’s strategies to advance its strategic priorities over the next three years. This year, 
with the flexibility afforded through the Assurance Pilot, the District has established an Assurance and 
Public Board Reporting Cycle in support of completing the 3YEP/AERR. This cycle was developed to 
achieve the following outcomes: 
• establish a planning and reporting cycle that considers when local and provincial data is available

for analysis and to inform timely decisions 

Page 10 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Strategic Plan Update 

 

2 

• use evidence to inform programming decisions that promote success for all students 
• support a cycle of continuous improvement and reinforce how results and data drive District 

planning and reporting 
• interpret and report on results in a manner that demonstrates assurance and transparency. With 

these outcomes in mind, for the 2016–2017 school year, at each public Board meeting, a high level 
overview and an analysis of results for a District Strategic Plan goal and outcome will be presented. 
Not only will this reporting cycle support the completion of the 3YEP/AERR, it will enable 
meaningful dialogue on results and strategies moving forward. 

 
KEY POINTS 
Attachment 1 provides the Board of Trustees with an update of the District’s Strategic Plan for Priority 3, 
Goal Two—Supports for the Whole Child. 
 
ATTACHMENTS and APPENDICES 
ATTACHMENT I Priority 3, Goal Two—Supports for the Whole Child 
 
NP:ja 
 

Page 11 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

3 

 
Strategic Plan Update—Supports for the Whole Child 

 
Introduction 
The entire community has a role to play in supporting student success. The diversity and complexity of 
need across our student population requires expertise, knowledge and opportunities beyond that of 
education. For all students to engage, learn and thrive in the classroom no matter their background, 
capabilities or circumstances, the District needs to work closely with our fellow community stakeholders 
who share our commitment to the success and well-being of children and youth in the Edmonton area. 
 
The organizations and individuals with whom the District collaborates are diverse and include members 
of the business community, not-for profit organizations, community service clubs, volunteers and other 
areas and levels of government. The District strategically seeks out a broad range of community partners 
whose expertise and programming align with the demographic complexity and diversity of our students 
and families. When exploring opportunities to work with a community stakeholder, it is important that 
there is a shared responsibility between our organizations regarding the well-being and safety of 
students and shared values around how we will work together. 
 
Working with members of the broader community looks different across District schools, as each 
school’s principal works strategically to form relationships and opportunities with community 
stakeholders that reflect the needs and circumstances of their student population. Principals look at 
their school data, engage with staff, students and parents and assess the community assets readily 
available within their broader community to determine what supports will best enhance student success 
and achievement. 
 
To support District leaders in their work with community stakeholders, the District has developed the 
School-Community Relationships document that defines the various types of school-community 
relationships that are possible and provides information around expectations to appropriately support 
and execute each type of relationship. To help principals to manage, organize and record the various 
community supports within their school, an electronic tracking tool was launched this year. This tool will 
also help sustain relationships when principals transition from one school to another. When there is a 
change in school leadership, this time of transition is critical to the ongoing well-being and success of 
students. Care and attention must be given by both the outgoing and incoming school leader. Data from 
the 2016-2017 operational year will support individual schools in their work with community 
stakeholders and will also serve as a District data source to provide information around various aspects 
of community supports for students at a systems level. 
 
The work to leverage the support and capacity of community stakeholders exists at two levels within the 
District. Schools work directly with potential community stakeholders to bring into their school the 
supports and programs that align with the needs that are unique to their students and families. Schools 
also work first hand with each community partner to implement and maintain the school-community 
initiative. This work requires time to support communication and planning and is founded upon 
relationships that reflect the trust between the school and the community partner.  
 
Many community stakeholders also maintain a working relationship with staff from Central to support 
the perspective, complexity and logistics of working as partners at an organizational level. This work 
includes such things as Memorandums of Understanding (MOU), grant reporting or opportunities to 
scale up or expand programming. Central staff also engage with community stakeholders who value an 
ongoing dialogue with the District around a shared concern for the success and well-being of youth.   

ATTACHMENT I 

Page 12 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

4 

The following provides an overview of 2015 District Feedback Survey data pertinent to the role of 
community stakeholders and a “snapshot” of the various ways that community enhances the work of 
schools and contributes towards the District’s Vision of transforming the learners of today into the 
leaders of tomorrow. This snapshot focuses on some of the many community supports and touch points 
that extend beyond or outside of education’s instructional mandate. When these types of supports are 
brought into a school in a deliberate and strategic manner, they align with, enhance and enable the 
conditions necessary to promote successful learning. This report also highlights next steps at a District 
level in support of strategic community engagement. 
 
It must be noted that the report highlights several examples of school-community work across the 
District and shines a light on many community stakeholders who are invested in and committed to the 
success of our students. However, it is important to recognize that these are just some examples and 
that there are many more initiatives and community stakeholders engaged in meaningful ways across 
District schools. 
  

Page 13 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



5 

Priority 3: 
Enhance public education through communication, engagement and 
partnerships 

Goal Two: Supports for the Whole Child 

Outcome: Community partnerships are established to provide supports and 
services to foster growth and success of students and families.  

Section One: Key Performance Indicators

Key Performance Indicator Results (in percentages) Evaluation 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Improvement 

PARTNERSHIPS 

Percentage of staff that report Edmonton Public Schools 
has partnerships that enhance student success. (Source: 
District Feedback Survey Q 20d) 

79.9 Baseline 

Percentage of staff that report that their school has access 
to supports and services for students with challenging 
circumstances. (Source: District Feedback Survey Q 26c) 

80.4 Baseline 

Percentage of parents that report that they are aware of 
community partners in their child’s school. (Source: District 
Feedback Survey Q 26) 

37.8 Baseline 

Percentage of community agency staff that report they 
have a positive working relationship with school staff that 
enables meeting their agency’s mandate in support of 
students. (Source: District Feedback Survey Q 5a) 

96.9 Baseline 

Percentage of community agency CEOs that report they 
have a positive working relationship with Edmonton Public 
Schools’ Central Office staff. (Source: District Feedback 
Survey Q 7a) 

91.2 Baseline 

Percentage of community agency staff that report they see 
a direct link between school-based supports and services 
their agency provides and student growth and success. 
(Source: District Feedback Survey Q 5d) 

99.0 Baseline 

Percentage of community agency staff that report there are 
processes to support effective communication and 
decision-making between their agency and school staff. 
(Source: District Feedback Survey Q 5c) 

89.8 Baseline 

Page 14 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



6 

Key Performance Indicator Results (in percentages) Evaluation 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Improvement 

PARTNERSHIPS  
 

Percentage of community and partners that report their 
organization understands how to navigate the various 
levels and departments of Edmonton Public Schools that 
supports how they work together. (Source: District 
Feedback Survey Q 7c) 

61.8 Baseline 

Percentage of community and partners that report 
Edmonton Public Schools is perceived positively by the 
neighborhood. (Source: District Feedback Survey Q 26h) 

83.1 Baseline 

Percentage of community and partners that report 
Edmonton Public Schools is actively connected to the 
neighbourhood. (Source: District Feedback Survey Q26i) 

68.3 Baseline 

Section Two
Analysis of Results 

In the 2015 District Feedback Survey, community, staff and parents were surveyed about community 
partnerships. Community responses include feedback from both community agency staff and CEOs. The 
2015 implementation was the first reach out to community stakeholders to provide feedback to the 
District through a survey. Participation numbers reflect a small sample of the total number of 
community stakeholders engaged with the District. 

The data from the District Feedback Survey reflects input from 243 community members invested in the 
well-being and success of District students. The majority of these participants would have been invited 
to participate in the survey by a school principal or by a key Central staff member, who had a working 
relationship with them. This data indicates the following strengths and opportunities for further growth 
or development as presented in spring 2015. 

There is high satisfaction from community agency staff who work directly in the school setting, with 99 
per cent indicating that they see a direct connection between the work they do with children and youth 
in the school setting and the goal of student success. This same group indicated 96.9 per cent 
satisfaction with the working relationship they have with the staff of the school where they work. This 
same group also responded with 89.8 per cent positive satisfaction regarding communication and 
decision-making processes between themselves and the school staff. Overall these figures indicate that 
community agency staff feel positively about the opportunity to work directly in the school setting and 
the level of collaboration with the school staff they work alongside. 
• While staff working front line or directly in District schools expressed a high level of satisfaction, so

did the respondents who identified as an agency CEO, with 91.2 per cent indicating that they have a 
positive working relationship with the District. 

• Where the data indicates there is opportunity for the District to strengthen its work with community
stakeholders is in the area of clarity around how to navigate working with the District; 61.8 per cent 
of respondents indicated that they understand how to navigate working with the various levels and 
departments across the District. 

Page 15 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



7 

The survey also captured District staff perceptions around the impact and role of community 
stakeholders related to student success. Staff feedback indicated that 79.9 per cent are aware of and 
value partnerships that enhance student success. Additionally 80.4 per cent of staff indicated that their 
school has access to supports and services for students with challenging circumstances. Many of these 
supports would be provided by an external service provider. 

The parent survey also asked if they were aware of community partners at their child’s school. In 2015, 
only 37.8 per cent of parents responded that they were aware of the community partners. This is an 
indication that the District can better celebrate and acknowledge the role and contributions of 
community stakeholders towards student success.  

Finally, the survey asked questions that provided feedback related to the community’s awareness and 
perception of Edmonton Public Schools. The District is generally perceived positively by the broader 
community (83.1 per cent) and additionally 68.3 per cent of respondents indicated that they feel the 
District is actively connected to the broader community. 

Overview of Community Stakeholder Engagement 
Though the work with community stakeholders is diverse and responsive to the unique needs of each 
school community, a significant portion of community supports and involvement can be categorized into 
two areas of impact: wraparound supports and services, and enrichment opportunities. The following 
provides an overview and exemplars of community impact across District schools in these two areas. 

Wraparound Supports and Services: wraparound refers to a philosophy of care designed to assist 
vulnerable children, youth and families whose needs extend beyond what the school or another service 
partner alone can provide. It is a collaborative and definable team‐driven planning process that results in 
creation and implementation of an individualized support plan built on child/youth/family strengths and 
designed to address identified needs to improve success at home, at school and in the community. 
(Wrapping Supports and Services around Alberta’s Students: Research Summary, 2010, p. 1) 

Schools across the District work to support all students, including our most vulnerable or at-risk. 
Students come from a variety of backgrounds and circumstances and face a range of challenges or 
barriers on their learning journeys. Wraparound supports address the nature of a student’s area of risk 
or need and often remove significant barriers to a child or youth’s ability to engage in learning in a 
meaningful manner. Examples of wraparound supports across the District schools include, but are not 
limited to, the following initiatives and areas of support: 
• The Star Program at Jasper Place High School and the Way In program at Dan Knott, T.D. Baker and

Edith Rogers Junior High schools are both Mental Health Building Capacity funded projects through 
the Government of Alberta. These projects use a wraparound approach to ensure there are mental 
health supports and programming available to students and families directly within the school 
setting. Staff from the various community agencies work directly in District schools to provide 
supports and programs that range from proactive to therapeutic in nature. Alberta Health Services, 
The Family Centre, Boys and Girls Big Brothers Big Sisters, Edmonton Police Service, the YMCA and 
Edmonton & Area Child and Family Services are some of the key service providers partnering with 
the District in support of these two programs.  

• All in for Youth is another community funded initiative that sees wraparound supports and services
delivered in varying degrees of implementation across 16 District schools serving students impacted 
by the complexity of social vulnerability. The model is built upon five areas of practice—in-school 
supports, family supports, out-of-school time supports, teaching excellence and system 
responsiveness—and reflects a shared goal of high school completion for every child. Four of the 16 

Page 16 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



8 

District schools supported by the model are part of a three-year demonstration site initiative being 
evaluated to inform practice, future funding and impact of the approach. The four schools are: 
Delton, Eastglen, John A. McDougall and Spruce Avenue. The additional nine District schools 
receiving components of the model are: Abbott, Balwin, Beacon Heights, Edith Rogers, Highlands, 
John D. Bracco, Lawton, Montrose, Norwood, R. J. Scott, Rosslyn and Rundle. All in for Youth is a 
partnership between the District and Boys and Girls Big Brothers Big Sisters, the City of Edmonton, 
E4C , Edmonton Catholic Schools, the Edmonton Community Foundation, the Family Centre, Mental 
Health Foundation, Reach Edmonton—Council for Safe Communities and the United Way of the 
Alberta Capital Region. 

• Braemar School and Terra Centre work together to ensure students who are young parents can
continue to participate in their K to 12 education while fulfilling their parenting responsibilities.
Terra Centre provides childcare services and a wide range of parenting supports and programs, such
as financial literacy, cooking skills and family literacy, directly in Braemar School. School staff and
Terra staff work together closely in support of each Braemar student and her family.

• School nutrition: Research has proven that hunger is a significant barrier to a student being able to
participate in and benefit from schooling. Many children and youth in the Edmonton area come to
school hungry. There are several community stakeholders invested in supporting District schools to
address the issue of student hunger. Community support ranges from the provision of food, to
agency staff working directly in the school to coordinate and deliver a school nutrition program.
Some of the key community stakeholders currently supporting our schools include: Breakfast for
Learning, E4C, The Edmonton Food Bank, Food for Thought and various service clubs in the
Edmonton area. There are also many grocery stores, community groups and private citizens in the
Edmonton area who donate food or funds to local schools to support their efforts to ensure
students have access to adequate nutrition.

• Supports for families new to Canada: As schools work to support and engage students who are new
to Canada, language and culture sometimes present as a challenge. The District works closely with
many immigrant-serving agencies across the city to provide support and services to families who are
adjusting to life in Canada and the Alberta public school system. These services include such things
as translation support, settlement services for parents, and cultural youth mentorship. The
Edmonton Immigrant Services Association, the Edmonton Mennonite Centre for Newcomers and
the Multicultural Health Brokers Cooperative are key stakeholders in the Edmonton area working
closely with District schools in support of students and families new to Canada.
o The District’s relationships with the many immigrant-serving agencies are fostered by both

individual schools and the Diversity Education Unit.
• Supports to enhance First Nations, Métis, and Inuit education: As the District works towards

eliminating the achievement gap for First Nations, Métis, and Inuit students, working with
community is essential. Schools are striving to create environments that are culturally responsive
and honour the history of the First Nations, Métis, and Inuit people; they can to do so with the
support, guidance and involvement of Elders, Knowledge Keepers, Cultural Advisors and community
agencies. Bent Arrow Traditional Healing Society, the Canadian Native Friendship Centre and Métis
Child and Family Services are all community agencies that share in the responsibility for wellness
and thriving for the First Nations, Métis, and Inuit youth served in the Edmonton area.
o Again, these relationships are supported by both schools working in partnership with one or

more of these agencies and by the District’s First Nations, Métis, and Inuit Education Unit.
• Inclusive Learning works in partnership with Alberta Health Services to provide specialized supports 

and services for students. Through this partnership, under the model of Regional Collaborative 
Service Delivery (RCSD), schools have direct access to Occupational Therapists, Speech Language 
Pathologists and Mental Health Therapists that are aligned through Inclusive Learning School-
Linked Teams.

Page 17 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



9 

Professionals from multiple disciplines work across all age groups, including in the early years, to 
support assessment of, and programming for, the District’s most vulnerable learners, many of 
whom qualify for specialized supports or programming as they grow and develop physically, 
emotionally and socially.

• Mental health supports: Schools are supporting an increasing number of students presenting with or
identifying as having mental health needs. Extensive work has been done to build the capacity and 
understanding of District staff around mental health; however, this is a complex issue and requires 
the professional support and expertise of those trained in the area of mental health. District leaders 
are working closely with community mental health stakeholders to bring their professional 
perspective and expertise directly into schools. Several schools have committed educational funding 
to purchase school-based mental health supports from a community service provider. Key 
stakeholders working with District schools include Alberta Health Services, Child and Adolescent 
Services and the Family Centre.  

The work around mental health at Lillian Osborne School is an example of what this can look like in a 
school community. Lillian Osborne School has deliberately focused on student health and well-being 
for their school community. This work has resulted in them having a community mental health 
collaborative team. The team has staff from the Family Centre and Alberta Health Services Addiction 
and Mental Health. The team provides onsite individual counselling and support for students, helps 
students and families connect with health care providers in the community, works with teachers in 
the delivery of classroom health sessions and offers universal school events that promote well-
being. Students at Lillian Osborne have the opportunity to participate in Chatters. Chatters is an 
after school opportunity for students, offered in partnership with a community speech pathologist. 
Participating students receive training to work one-on-one with children and youth who would 
benefit from enhanced opportunities to develop their language, vocabulary and social speaking 
skills. This partnership promotes student leadership, builds student awareness of and empathy for 
others who struggle with expressing themselves verbally and provides participating students 
experiential learning in the area of speech therapy. 

• Health and Wellness: Many schools strive to take a proactive approach to supporting their students’
physical and emotional well-being by creating a school culture that informs and promotes a healthy 
lifestyle. APPLE Schools is one example of a not-for-profit community organization that works in 
partnership with a school to take a comprehensive approach to teaching, modeling and promoting 
healthy life choices to students. APPLE Schools currently works in 15 District schools. Be Fit for Life, 
Alberta Health Services, Ever Active Schools and NStep are other Alberta-based not-for-profit 
organizations who partner with District schools in support of the comprehensive school health 
approach.  
o As well as schools working directly with health-focused service providers, the District’s

Comprehensive School Health team maintains working relationships with many of the health 
service provider stakeholders. 

Enrichment Opportunities: enrichment can be defined as, “when something is made more valuable” or 
in the context of education, “the many things that students choose to do beyond their academic pursuits 
and the normal requirements of their life.” (vocabulary.com) 

For many of the District’s 95,000+ students, when they leave school each day they go home to a variety 
of activities and experiences that enhance their skills, expose them to new experiences and enable them 
to explore and develop interests and talents beyond what they would typically experience in the school 
setting. Soccer, piano lessons, family vacations, day trips to the countryside, attending the ballet, or 
going to a professional sporting event are all activities that promote curiosity and expand a young 

Page 18 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

10 

person’s understanding of the world around them. These are also experiences that serve as context and 
background knowledge that students draw upon and apply to their learning back in the classroom 
setting. Unfortunately for some students, these experiences and opportunities to explore and grow in 
their life outside of school do not exist. This lack of opportunity serves as a barrier or gap along their K to 
12 learning journey.  
 
Many District schools work with community stakeholders to mitigate this gap and ensure all students 
have access to safe, affordable and quality experiences outside of the school day that will serve as a 
source of enrichment. 
• Literacy, as defined by Alberta Education, “is the ability, confidence and willingness to engage with 

language to acquire, construct and communicate meaning in all aspects of daily living”. Literacy is an 
essential life skill and is developed both in school and in a student’s life outside of school. To support 
meaningful literacy engagement and growth in the learning environment, many schools work in 
partnership with other literacy stakeholders to engage students and families in literacy focused 
opportunities outside of the classroom that supplement and build upon the literacy learning of the K 
to 12 curriculum. The Edmonton Public Library (EPL), the Centre for Family Literacy and Frontier 
College are community stakeholders in the area of literacy that have a long history of working with 
District schools. The District recently signed a new five-year MOU with EPL. The MOU acknowledges 
the current opportunities that exist for schools and EPL community branches to work together in 
support of literacy. District schools can reach out to one of the 20 community branches across the 
city to access library cards for students, after school programming, field trips or presentations. The 
MOU also lays the foundation for the District to work with EPL to explore new, exciting and efficient 
ways to come together around our shared value of literacy and our commitment to children, youth 
and families. 

• After school programming: Many schools, particularly those serving socially vulnerable populations, 
recognize the importance of providing a safe place and programming for students at the end of the 
school day. The school is often the safest and most accessible location for this to occur. Schools 
typically work with community partners to provide access to after school programming for students. 
There is a network of agencies and community groups in the Edmonton area committed to providing 
quality afterschool programming. This programming is offered around various themes and schools 
often have multiple community groups offering after school programs for their students. At one 
District elementary school, the after school supports include soccer, art, running and reading, 
homework club, healthy chefs and strings. The school works with six different community groups to 
have these programs available to its students.  
o Boys and Girls Big Brothers Big Sisters is a community leader in this work, as they support a 

model of after school programming in several District schools and host after school 
programming at their nine Edmonton community clubs. They also act as a mentor or coach to 
other community groups interesting in providing after school programming for children and 
youth. The efforts to provide after school programming extend across a diverse group of 
providers and initiatives.  

o To support the diversity of students’ interests and provide participants with a range of 
opportunities and experiences, after school programming touches across a diverse range of 
offerings—the arts, soccer, recreation, healthy chefs, homework support, literacy support, 
community service or student leadership. The following are just some of the examples of after 
school programming offered in music enrichment alone:  
 Heart of the City Music Program is organized and delivered by University of Alberta student 

volunteers and supports weekly piano lessons for students across 10 District schools: 
Abbott, Beacon Heights, Delton, Donnan, Dovercourt, Ekota, John A. McDougall, Norwood, 
Overlanders and R.J. Scott. 

Page 19 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

11 

 Yona Sistema is an after school music program provided in partnership with the Edmonton 
Symphony Orchestra and based upon the Venezuelan El Sistema project that used music to 
influence social change. The Edmonton model provides under-served children and youth the 
opportunity for social, emotional, academic, and musical development. Currently, Delton 
School works in partnership with Yona Sistema to bring this program to its students. 

 Sarah McLachlan School of Music offers high quality music programming in a safe, nurturing 
environment for children and youth who face barriers in their access to music education. 
The school is currently working in partnership with both Eastglen and Rundle schools. 

 music ENRICHMENT program offers affordable and accessible after school string music 
lessons for children and youth. They currently partner with 11 District schools to bring their 
programming to families across the Edmonton area; the schools are Bessie Nichols, 
Caernarvon, Dr. Donald Massey, D. S. Mackenzie, Edmonton Christian Northeast, Esther 
Starkman, Forest Heights, George P. Nicholson, Kildare, Victoria and Westglen. 

• Many of the agencies committed to providing quality after school programs also engage with 
students during Spring Break and summer holidays. These initiatives tend to be more intensive and 
complex than an after school focus and are often delivered through the collective capacity of 
multiple agencies. An example of this collaborative approach took place at Rundle School this past 
summer, with staff from the Frontier College, the Edmonton Public Library, the Family Centre, E4C 
and Boys and Girls Big Brothers Big Sisters working together to host a summer program in the 
month of July. This collaborative model has also supported summer programs at Edith Rogers, 
Balwin, Spruce Avenue and J. D. Bracco schools. 

 
 
Section Three 
 
Priority Strategies Moving Forward 
To support the efforts of District leaders, at both school and central levels, to strategically engage and 
leverage community supports, work will continue around the development of a partnership framework. 
This work will build upon the School-Community Relationship document and aim to fill existing gaps in 
our efforts to work effectively and strategically with community stakeholders. Key next steps in this 
work are to develop a central point of entry or initial contact to engage and support community 
stakeholders and to implement a sharing of information protocol to support the appropriate and timely 
sharing of critical information between the District and community partners. At the completion of the 
2016-2017 school year, the District will also have the first data set reflecting schools entering their 
information into the school community tracking tool. This will provide the District with the opportunity 
to review this data and look for meaningful connections to inform working with our community 
stakeholders. 
 
In summary, working collaboratively with external stakeholders is a critical strategy towards the success 
of all students. To support this work, the District will continue to build a partnership framework that 
provides District leaders with resources to guide their efforts in exploring, developing, implementing, 
and maintaining strategic relationships with community stakeholders that result in students thriving and 
achieving to the best of their ability. 
 

Page 20 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

1 

Recommendation Report 

DATE: April 25, 2017 
 
TO:  Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Darrel Robertson, Superintendent of Schools 
 
SUBJECT: 2017-2018 Distribution of Funds 
 
ORIGINATOR: Todd Burnstad, Chief Financial Officer 
 
RESOURCE 
STAFF: Krista Brandon 
 
REFERENCE: Bill 1: An Act to Reduce School Fees 
 
 
ISSUE 
This report identifies the proposed distribution of funds for the 2017-2018 budget. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Provincial Funding 
On March 16, 2017 the provincial government announced funding to school boards for the 2017-2018 
school year.  With no funding rate decreases to grants and with projected enrolment growth funding, 
the 2017-2018 budget (Attachment I) reflects the government’s commitment to supporting education, 
even under the current economic situation in Alberta.   
 
In conjunction with the 2017-2018 budget the Alberta government has proposed legislation to reduce 
school fees for Alberta families with the introduction of Bill 1: An Act to Reduce School Fees.  Bill 1 
contains provision to prevent school authorities from charging for instructional supplies and materials 
and from charging transportation fees for eligible students taking the bus to their designated school 
when they reside 2.4 kilometers or more away.  In lieu of charging these fees, funding has been 
provided to the District based on information reported in our 2015-2016 audited financial statements.  If 
passed, Bill 1 will take effect on September 1, 2017. 
 
Key Message 
The Distribution of Funds sets the stage for allocations to schools and central decision units. These 
allocations support the District’s Vision, Mission, and Values as well as the 2014-2018 Priorities. 
 
Budget Highlights 
• With no changes to funding, we have been able to maintain the student allocation rates as well as 

the staff unit costs at the same levels as in the current year, this results in a fairly “status quo” 
budget for schools and central decision units. Some schools will be impacted by the projected 
enrolment growth, but student driven allocations are available to support them.   

• A projected enrolment growth of 3.2 per cent or 3,074 new students, brings the total 
projected enrolment to 98,716 (Attachment II). 

 
 
 

Page 21 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package

http://www.assembly.ab.ca/ISYS/LADDAR_files/docs/bills/bill/legislature_29/session_3/20170302_bill-001.pdf


 

2 

Recommendation Report 

RELATED FACTS 
Budget Assumptions 
• Edmonton Public Schools assumes that any compensation adjustment related to the teachers’ 

agreement (which expired in August 2016) will be fully funded by the province. The Distribution of 
Funds has not included any potential impact in the 2017-2018 budget. 

• There is uncertainty with the new Education Act around the content and timing (both of which could 
significantly impact Edmonton Public Schools). As such the Distribution of Funds has not factored in 
any impact either from a funding or expense point of view. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
That Distribution of Funds for the 2017-2018 budget be approved. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS and ANALYSIS 
Bill 1: An Act to Reduce School Fees: 
We are continuing to gather additional information around Bill 1 and the impact to Edmonton Public 
School Board.  The District is required to submit an updated fee policy and related schedules to the 
Province before the end of June.   
 
Accumulated Operating Surplus: 
In conjunction with the approval of the distribution of the District's surplus plan (approved on 
November 29, 2016), surplus funds were directed towards supporting the District's most vulnerable 
students including our English Language Learners (ELL) as well as our students identified as having 
severe special needs.  This plan included accessing $6 Million of surplus funds for the 2017-2018 school 
year to maintain the increased student allocation rates.  This has been reflected as access to operating 
reserve funds on Attachment III. 
 
The District is currently completing a forecast in order to update our projected ending accumulated 
surplus balance for the year ended August 31, 2017.   Once completed, a list of initiatives requiring 
access to surplus funds will be updated, with the goal to release these funds in conjunction with the 
spring proposed budget. 
 
NEXT STEPS 
Following approval of the Distribution of Funds, Budget Services will update the budget allocations using 
the pre-enrolment information (not available until April 24, 2017).  The allocations will then be sent out 
to schools and central decision units on May 1, 2017 for completion of the 2017-2018 Spring Proposed 
Budget. 
 
ATTACHMENTS and APPENDICES  
ATTACHMENT I 2017-2018 Spring Proposed Revenue Budget 
ATTACHMENT II Student Draft Projected Enrolment 2017-2018 vs 2016-2017 
ATTACHMENT III Distribution of Funds 
ATTACHMENT IV Request for Increase’s to Central Base Allocations 
 
TB:ja 

Page 22 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Page 23 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Page 24 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Page 25 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Page 26 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Page 27 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Page 28 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Page 29 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Page 30 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Page 31 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Page 32 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

1 

Recommendation Report 

DATE: April 25, 2017 
 
TO:  Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Darrel Robertson, Superintendent of Schools 
 
SUBJECT: Three-Year Capital Plan 2018–2021 
 
ORIGINATOR: Lorne Parker, Executive Director 
 
RESOURCE 
STAFF: Brent Dragon, Josephine Duquette, Jon Dziadyk, Jenifer Elliott, Leanne Fedor, Terri 

Gosine, Geoff Holmes, Kim Holowatuk, Scott Humphrey, Roland Labbe, Valerie 
Leclair, Maegan Lukian, Kyle McFarlane, Shaminder Parmar, Crystal Plante, Hayden 
Sanchez-Avery, David Sloan, Marlene Tetrault, Jennifer Thompson, Christopher 
Wright 

 
REFERENCE: School Capital Manual – March 2015 
 
 
ISSUE 
The District’s Three-Year Capital Plan must be approved by the Board of Trustees on an annual basis 
(Attachment I). The deadline for submission of the Three-Year Capital Plan 2018–2021 to Alberta 
Education is May 12, 2017. 
 
BACKGROUND 
On March 21, 2017, the Government of Alberta announced funding for three capital projects for 
Edmonton Public Schools (Attachment II). One of the projects is a modernization and addition to 
Highlands School. The funding for this project will honour the concept developed through the 
community consultation process in 2014–2015. After the modernization and addition are completed, 
Highlands School will welcome the students from Mount Royal and Montrose schools. The remaining 
two projects are new construction, a Grades 7–9 school in the Larkspur neighbourhood and a 
Kindergarten to Grade 6 school in the developing neighbourhood of McConachie. The table below 
summarizes the funded priorities from the Three-Year Capital Plan 2017–2020. 
 

 Funded Priorities Capacity Sector Cost 
(millions) 

Year 1     

1 K–9 Highlands Modernization / 
Consolidation 

800 NE $27 

2 Larkspur 7–9 950 SE $33 

3 McConachie K–6 650 NC $20 

 

Page 33 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

2 

Recommendation Report 

This announcement allows the District to respond to the unique challenges in mature neighbourhoods 
by investing in the modernization of a historic school and creating efficient 21st century learning 
environments. The two new construction projects will help the District provide local accommodation for 
the students residing in these areas. However, we know that the City of Edmonton continues to grow 
and our existing students are progressing through their primary education years. These two factors 
continue to place pressures on providing local K-9 accommodation in new areas, as well as new high 
school spaces. 
 
Infrastructure Planning Principles 
In September 2013, the Board of Trustees approved the Infrastructure Planning Principles to guide 
capital, facility and student accommodation planning. The principles are as follows: 
1. Accountability: Infrastructure decisions shall be transparent, evidence based and reflect meaningful 

engagement with stakeholders. 
2. Centres for Educational Excellence: Infrastructure assets shall serve as centres for educational 

excellence that meet the needs of District students, as well as their families and staff, where 
appropriate. 

3. Environmental Stewardship: All decisions relating to infrastructure management shall demonstrate 
a commitment to environmental stewardship. 

4. Equitable Access: All students and staff shall have fair access to safe, welcoming, high quality 
learning and working environments that will increase their opportunities and decrease their 
vulnerabilities. 

5. Fiscal Responsibility: Decisions on infrastructure shall consider long-term needs and current 
realities, and reflect effective management of District resources. 

6. Service to Community: District infrastructure assets are public buildings intended to serve our 
students, families, and staff as well as the broader community where appropriate. Capital 
investment shall consider the demographics, long-term plans, and needs of the community. 

7. Supports for the Whole Child: Space shall be available to enable partnerships with shared 
responsibilities in order to provide integrated services that support District students. 

 
These principles guide the actions of the Board, the Superintendent and Administration when allocating 
financial resources, creating priorities for capital funding, maintaining and building new school buildings, 
acquiring land or declaring it surplus, establishing programming, exploring partnerships and creating 
places for safe, caring, healthy, respectful, diverse, inclusive and equitable learning. The capital priorities 
proposed in this Three-Year Capital Plan reflects these principles. 
 
District Infrastructure Plan 
The Infrastructure Planning Principles guide the District Infrastructure Plan, which is aimed at 
transforming the District’s inventory of infrastructure assets to ensure outstanding educational 
opportunities and facilities are available for all students. The plan will identify timelines and goals to 
provide high quality learning environments, respond to community needs, address the deferred 
maintenance, and right size District space to efficiently meet short-term and long-term needs. The 
desired outcomes of the District Infrastructure Plan include the following: 
• ensure the District has sufficient infrastructure to offer high quality learning environments, 

geographically located to serve District demographics 
• align District infrastructure operations to effectively support the infrastructure management plan 
• support asset management plans for all buildings 
• ensure sufficient space is available for partnerships and community supports 

Page 34 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

3 

Recommendation Report 

• be consistent with sustainable transportation system designed to serve District needs 
• demonstrate commitment to continuous evergreening of infrastructure needs beyond 2022 
• support financial efficiencies to ensure District funds are directed to the areas that provide benefits 

for the most students 
 
Consistent application of the Infrastructure Planning Principles, through the development of the District 
Infrastructure Plan and its implementation through the Three-Year Capital Plan and Ten-Year Facilities 
Plan, is expected to build the confidence and trust of all stakeholders in the District’s infrastructure 
planning and management. Government stakeholders and the public will see that the District’s 
infrastructure is effectively supporting optimum learning opportunities and supports for students, 
responsive to community needs, and enabling the realization of the District’s vision and mission. The 
District will create opportunities for ongoing engagement with partners, community members, the City 
of Edmonton and provincial ministries to implement the District Infrastructure Plan. 
 
Edmonton Public Schools recognizes that minimizing environmental impacts will act to enhance its 
operational efficiency. The District has identified the need to monitor and calculate our carbon footprint 
so that strategies can be put in place to manage and reduce it. The District EnviroMatters Office has 
partnered with Eco Ammo Sustainable Consulting to perform quarterly carbon and sustainability 
reporting to increase the accuracy and reliability of our environmental footprint data. Having consistent, 
quarterly reporting will play an informative role in the infrastructure planning process and will lead to 
sustainable improvement suggestions. Moving forward, carbon footprint reports on individual District 
sites can be used to assist in determining the sustainable cost of all buildings to the District, including 
closed schools and help the District adapt and manage the new Alberta Carbon Tax. Environmental 
report trends can inform new school construction and modernization designs based on the District's 
specific sustainability needs and areas for improvement. 
 
In terms of Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED), certified District schools provide a 
healthier learning and working environment through use of natural light and improved air quality, in 
addition to being more energy-efficient and more cost effective to operate. Michael Strembitsky, Major-
General Griesbach, Bessie Nichols, Elizabeth Finch, A. Blair McPherson and Johnny Bright schools have 
all received LEED Gold designations, with Lillian Osborne, Esther Starkman, Florence Hallock and Dr. 
Donald Massey schools each receiving LEED Silver designations. All new District schools are built to 
achieve a LEED Silver certification, including Dr. Margaret Ann-Armour, Nellie Carlson and Roberta 
MacAdams schools, which opened in the fall of 2016. In the fall of 2017, 11 new schools will be opening 
throughout the city and will also be pursuing LEED certification. 
 
Additionally, the District is continuing to identify, work with, and build relationships with consultants 
that bring a high level of specialized engineering and project management expertise on robust energy 
efficient retrofit designs and systems. 
 
Ten-Year Facilities Plan 
The Ten-Year Facilities Plan 2015–2024 provides a broad overview of the District’s facilities and 
identifies long-range facility needs. As per Alberta Education guidelines, the plan provides an overview 
of District facility information by sector and includes enrolment trends and projections, demographic 
data, facility condition information, current and projected utilization rates and programming 
opportunities. The plan identifies future modernization and expansion needs and informs the 
development of the District’s Three-Year Capital Plan. 

Page 35 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

4 

Recommendation Report 

Capital Planning Methodology 
The Three-Year Capital Plan 2018–2021 outlines the District’s capital priorities for the next three-year 
period. It includes a detailed breakdown of project costs by facility required, and demonstrates that the 
District has evaluated its ability to deliver the requested projects during the three-year period. Once 
approved, the priorities are entered into the provincial database system, including copies of Site 
Readiness Checklists for new or replacement school projects included in Year 1 of the submission. 
Alberta Education reviews and prioritizes the District’s school capital projects in accordance with the 
Alberta School Capital Manual, March 2015 (Attachment IV). Projects are prioritized using the following 
criteria:  health and safety, building condition, utilization rates, enrolment projections, education 
program delivery and impact, site readiness and infrastructure performance. The review will also include 
any additional information provided such as regional plans or partnership opportunities. 
 
New construction is primarily being requested in developing, suburban areas. Requests for schools in 
the developing, suburban neighbourhoods are intended to accommodate the continued growth in 
population of elementary school-age students, and the continued rollover of these students into junior 
and senior high schools over the next four years. New construction requests are also contemplated in 
mature communities where replacement schools represent better value compared to modernization 
costs. In some cases the modernization costs approach the value of a full replacement. 
 
According to the City of Edmonton Annual Growth Monitoring Report, 2016, there has been significant 
residential growth in developing, suburban neighbourhoods. Over 2015, developing areas of the city 
have seen an increase of close to 25,000 people, while mature communities have gained an estimated 
2,200 people, and established neighbourhoods have experienced a population loss of 400 people. 
During this time, the District has worked to accommodate the growing population of elementary school-
age children in developing areas. According to federal census data, the City of Edmonton has grown by 
120,345 residents between 2011 and 2016. Edmonton’s population is expected to grow by another two 
per cent over the next three years, according to the City of Edmonton. From 2001 to 2015, Edmonton 
Census Metropolitan Area had the highest number of young families with small children concentrated in 
developing neighbourhoods, creating pressure for services such as new schools (Attachment III). 
Developing neighbourhoods have experienced the highest population growth and have gained just 
under 85,000 people since 2012 - over 76,000 more than all core, mature and established 
neighbourhoods combined (City of Edmonton, Open Data Portal). Established neighbourhoods have 
seen a decline of about 950 residents while core and mature neighbourhoods have increased by 
approximately 4,600 and 5,100 residents respectively. 
 
Despite various infill initiatives happening in Edmonton, developing neighbourhoods have accounted for 
81 per cent of total residential growth in 2015. In 2015, approximately 55 per cent of all newly serviced 
residential lots were located in new neighbourhoods in the southeast and southwest. Residential 
development trends in 2015 have seen an increase in the number of lot registrations; however, servicing 
activity and building permits issued have decreased from 2014 numbers. Despite the decline of lot 
servicing and building permits from 2014 all three indicators are up from 2010 to 2013 numbers. In early 
2016, the neighbourhood of Aster was approved by City Council. In 2015, three neighbourhood 
structure plans were approved (Marquis, Uplands, and River’s Edge) and one area structure plan was 
approved in the southeast (Decoteau). Approval of these new areas provides new housing options for 
families with children and the District is provided additional locations to offer local educational 
programming, in the long term.  In the short term these students are accommodated within existing 
District schools. 

Page 36 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

5 

Recommendation Report 

The opening of three new schools (two K–9 and one K–6) in the 2016–2017 school year and the 
scheduled opening of 11 new schools (seven K–9, two K–7, one K–6 and one 7–9) in the 2017–2018 
school year have relieved some of the immediate enrolment pressures that resulted from no new school 
construction from 2002 to 2010, despite the rapid student population growth in new suburban areas 
that occurred during the same time.   
 
The proposed priorities for new construction and major additions are based on a review of all land 
development plans, policies and data for the City of Edmonton, and analysis of pre-school and student 
residency data in suburban areas, including but not limited to: 
• number of current students residing in an area and projected students 
• the historical pace of development and the amount of development remaining in an area 
• utilization of the schools that the majority of students residing in the area attend 
• average distance travelled by the students to their designated school 
• accommodation of alternative and special education programs, and partnerships 
• current state of development of the proposed site 
• new capacity represented by recently funded capital projects, not yet operational 
 
Focusing on attendance area high school enrolment and space, the High School Accommodation 
Framework 2016–2019 has concluded that additional capacity is needed now and in the near future to 
accommodate increasing high school student enrolment in the District. Assuming that current 
enrolment trends hold and there is no drastic demographic change in our city, high school enrolment in 
the District will stabilize when it reaches approximately 30,000 students in attendance area high schools. 
The District will need at least 8,000 additional spaces to accommodate these students, thus new high 
school requests require increased prioritization. 
 
The criteria for prioritizing new construction projects places an emphasis on locations experiencing rapid 
growth and students traveling a significant distance to a school with space to accommodate them. 
 
Several replacements and modernizations are also proposed to aid in dealing with the Districts’ aging 
infrastructure. The recent funding announcement for the K–9 Highlands School modernization concept 2 
will help address the need to reinvest in aging facilities with excess capacity. The three remaining 
initiatives currently underway in the city’s mature neighbourhoods in the Britannia, Rosslyn and 
Westlawn areas remain as capital priorities. The initiatives are modelled after two recent projects that 
saw the District engage communities in the Greater Lawton and Greater Highlands areas. The 
engagement process from the Greater Lawton area yielded a community-supported decision to combine 
the three local aging school facilities into one new replacement facility (which will open as Ivor Dent 
School in September 2017); while the communities in Greater Highlands area supported a modernized 
historic building and re-imagined new addition. These initiatives have provided the District opportunities 
to collaborate with provincial and municipal governments, partner agencies, as well as community 
groups, to contribute positively to community sustainability. 
 
Britannia, Rosslyn and Westlawn cluster areas are included in the capital priorities to support the future 
outcomes of Space for Students initiatives. The cluster areas will be prioritized based on the utilization 
within the clusters, deferred maintenance, operating costs, total enrolment, and outcomes of the public 
engagement meetings held in March 2017. The priority of these projects will be determined once the 
feedback from public engagement meetings in March is analyzed, and they can be specified and 
submitted in a fall amendment to the Three-Year Capital Plan 2018–2021. Similar conversations in 

Page 37 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

6 

Recommendation Report 

mature communities will continue over the coming years. To reflect the ongoing work involving our 
aging infrastructure in the mature communities, three additional placeholders are included in the list of 
priorities. The placeholders are intended to accommodate the outcomes from future consolidation 
discussions. Two replacement school projects for Delton and Spruce Avenue schools are retained in the 
capital priorities in acknowledgment of involvement in previous consolidation processes. These projects 
were identified through the sector review process in 2009–2010. A detailed assessment of these two 
facilities supports a replacement school in place of a modernization. When the projects are funded, the 
best location for the replacement school building within the existing site will be confirmed. 
 
Previous capital plans have included modernization projects for District schools based on the provincial 
facility condition, utilization trends, and enrolment trends. Currently, the District is conducting detailed 
building condition assessments for 153 District schools. This comprehensive building condition 
information will allow the District to refine a well-informed list of modernization projects for the capital 
plan moving forward. Modernization projects allow the District to provide equitable access to high 
quality learning environments to all students, reduce our environmental impact, and improve 
operational efficiencies. Based on the information gathered, an amendment to the Three-Year Capital 
Plan could be submitted in the fall to the province to re-integrate modernization projects within the 
priorities. 
 
Alberta Education has amended the capital plan submission process by including a fall amendment. The 
purpose of the amendment is to allow the capital plan to reflect current circumstances or changes in 
board priorities. Amendments are intended to accommodate unavoidable changes that are essential for 
consideration by Alberta Education. The spring submission remains the main focus for evaluating the 
Board’s capital priorities. 
 
RELATED FACTS 
• The province expects a Three-Year Capital Plan to be submitted annually and an up to date Ten-Year 

Facilities Plan must be available upon request. 
• An amendment to the Three-Year Capital Plan can be submitted to the province between 

September 30 and October 15. 
• School Community Renewal projects are considered in mature areas where enrolment and 

utilization trends are lower, facilities are oversized and require significant infrastructure investment. 
• New school construction projects are considered in growing suburban areas where the District is 

challenged to provide local accommodation to students. 
• A District Infrastructure Plan guides all decisions regarding District facilities based on the 

Infrastructure Planning Principles. 
• Provision of Quality Infrastructure for All by providing welcoming, high quality learning and working 

environments is a District priority. 
• This plan provides the best tool to advocate for adequate, stable and predictable funding to ensure 

quality infrastructure is assured to carry our District well into the 21st century. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
That the proposed capital priorities for modernizations and new construction identified in the Three-
Year Capital Plan 2018–2021 be approved. 
  

Page 38 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

7 

Recommendation Report 

OPTIONS  
Based on the information provided in this report, the following options are considered most 
appropriate: 
1. Approve the Three-Year Capital Plan 2018–2021, as presented for submission to Alberta Education. 
2. Approve the Three-Year Capital Plan 2018–2021, as amended for submission to Alberta Education. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS and ANALYSIS 
The uncertainty of access to capital funding creates challenges in prioritizing projects, for both 
modernizations/replacement schools and new school construction. While future unfunded projects, 
identified in the Alberta Budget 2017 – Fiscal Plan – Capital Plan (Attachment V), provides some 
assurance for capital project funding, the timelines remain uncertain. If the attached draft Three-Year 
Capital Plan 2018–2021 is approved then the projects identified in the provincial plan will need to be 
amended to reflect the new District priorities. Funding for modernization projects has been consistently 
below levels required to maintain high quality learning environments in all of the District’s aging 
infrastructure. The pace of residential development in new suburban areas has outpaced capital funding 
for constructing new local accommodation for the large numbers of students residing in these areas. 
The Three-Year Capital Plan 2018–2021 reflects investment in both mature areas and new growth areas 
in the District’s capital priorities. In 2016, the District awarded nine tendered construction packages for 
new school projects opening in 2017. All of these tendered packages closed below the budgeted 
amounts. Also in the spring of 2017, the tendered construction package for a modernization and 
addition at Caernarvon School is following the same pattern, indicating that there is a value in investing 
in infrastructure at this time. 
 
According to the City of Edmonton Annual Growth Monitoring Report, 2016, population growth in 
Edmonton since 2012 has been very rapid (7.4 per cent). Although this trend is city-wide, the majority of 
population and student growth is occurring in the developing neighbourhoods in the south. Nine of the 
top 10 fastest growing neighbourhoods between 2012 and 2016 are in the south (Windermere, Walker, 
Laurel, Summerside, Chappelle, Allard, Rutherford, Charlesworth and Callaghan). McConachie is the 
tenth neighbourhood, which is located in the north. The 10 neighbourhoods have a combined total 
population growth of approximately 41,000 residents over the last five years. 
 
There are now 41 developing neighbourhoods in the City of Edmonton and an additional 21 
neighbourhoods in the planned stage, as of December 2015. Twenty-five of these developing 
neighbourhoods are less than 75 per cent complete, so we can expect that student residency numbers 
will continue to climb across the city as development of these areas continues. More schools will face 
organizational and program delivery challenges as they struggle to accommodate these students. In 
order to meet the demand for student learning spaces in these areas, students will continue to be 
designated to schools with space to accommodate them. Many of these schools are ageing facilities in 
mature neighbourhoods located a significant distance away from where these students live. 
 
All core, mature and established neighbourhoods (encompassing 202 neighbourhoods) have a combined 
net population increase of 8,800 over the same time frame. Of these neighbourhoods, downtown, 
Windsor Park, Boyle Street, McCauley and Silver Berry had the largest increase of approximately 6,800 
residents while Kiniski Gardens, Jamieson Place, Aldergrove, Kameyosek and Woodcroft had the largest 
decline of more than 2,500 residents. 
 
Modernization projects/replacement schools in core and mature neighbourhoods will allow the District 
to provide equitable access to high quality learning environments to all students, reduce our 

Page 39 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

8 

Recommendation Report 

environmental impact and improve operational efficiencies. The previous plan requested funding for 
five modernization projects. These projects have been deferred from the plan for the time being and will 
be reconsidered once the District’s current detailed building condition assessments of 153 District 
schools are completed, prior to the start of the 2017–2018 school year. This comprehensive building 
condition information will allow the District to refine the assessment as to which schools require 
reinvestment in their facilities, whether it be through modernization or the Infrastructure Maintenance 
Renewal funds, or whether the school could be included within a future Space for Students review. The 
replacement of Delton School and Spruce Avenue School (which were supported outcomes of previous 
consolidation discussions) are retained in this plan’s list of capital priorities. 
 
Busing is generally provided to elementary students residing in neighbourhoods where there is no 
neighbourhood school. Currently, the greatest pressures on these fixed route ride times exist in 
southwest Edmonton due to the long distances to designated schools. Edmonton Transit System (ETS) is 
the preferred means of student transportation for junior high and senior high school students. Where 
ETS to the designated school is not available or does not provide an acceptable level of service, yellow 
bus service will be provided. The number of yellow bus riders has increased by 2,800 students for the 
five-year period 2012–2016, or 32 per cent. 
 
As a result of increasing student enrolment in the District, there is a need to plan for the growing 
number of prospective high school students. Accordingly, the High School Accommodation Framework 
2016–2019 was developed as a means to provide improved balance to student distribution and increase 
District infrastructure capacity as it relates to high school programming. 
 
The High School Accommodation Framework 2016–2019 has two principle priorities: 
1. To effectively respond to current and future student enrolment in highly utilized high schools. 
2. To repurpose space to improve efficient use of existing infrastructure in response to underutilized 

space. 
 
Focusing on attendance area high school enrolment and space, the framework is divided regionally and 
includes timely and appropriate stakeholder engagement. Assuming that current enrolment trends hold 
and there is no drastic demographic change in our city, enrolment in the District will stabilize when it 
reaches approximately 30,000 students in attendance area high schools. The District will need at least 
8,000 additional spaces to accommodate these students. The High School Accommodation Framework 
2016–2019 proposes a number of supports for the District that is responsive to student enrolment 
indicators, including new school requests.  A request for additional high school space has been made by 
the board in the last five capital plan submissions, not including this years’ draft submission. 
 
School community renewal projects, new construction opportunities in developing areas, growth of 
alternative and special education programs, and efficient management of our existing resources is 
complex. To continue to provide high quality learning environments and supports for students and 
community members, the District works closely with our partner organizations, where possible. A strong 
working relationship with our partners at the City of Edmonton has contributed to the initiatives in 
mature and developing communities. The District continues to look for additional opportunities to work 
with agencies and organizations that support students, their families and the broader community. 
 
NEXT STEPS 
The approved Three-Year Capital Plan 2018–2021 will be submitted to Alberta Education by May 12, 
2017. 

Page 40 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

9 

Recommendation Report 

ATTACHMENTS and APPENDICES  
ATTACHMENT I Three-Year Capital Plan 2018–2021 
ATTACHMENT II List of Funded Capital Projects, March 21, 2017 
ATTACHMENT III Percentage of Families with Children by Neighbourhood (City of Edmonton 2015 

Annual Growth Report) 
ATTACHMENT IV Excerpt from Alberta School Capital Manual 
ATTACHMENT V  Alberta Budget 2017 – Fiscal Plan – Capital Plan 
 
JD:ks 

Page 41 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
   

1 

Three-Year Capital Plan 2018–2021 
 
Introduction 
As the provincial capital and major hub to northern Alberta, Edmonton has been experiencing growth 
despite the decline in oil prices. While fiscal pressures continue to present challenges and opportunities 
for Alberta, Edmonton remains a preferred destination due to the opportunities and amenities of the 
city. The reach of global economic instability has been somewhat limited in Edmonton over the last few 
years. Infrastructure investments can help stimulate the economy by providing local jobs. Infrastructure 
investment can also address deferred maintenance issues in our aging buildings. Addressing our 
deferred maintenance will improve our environmental impact. 
 
Edmonton is a vibrant, growing city with a standard of living among the highest in North America. 
Schools are a vital service that helps to make Edmonton an appealing place to live, work, do business in 
and visit. An investment in schools plays a substantial role in bringing to life the vision for a complete 
community. The Census Metropolitan Area (CMA) of Edmonton population increased by 13.9 per cent 
since the 2011 census. The area's growth rate was above the national rate of five per cent, while the 
population of Alberta increased by 11.6 per cent. 
 
This year, nine of the 11 funded schools will open in September 2017, with the remaining two buildings 
scheduled to welcome students in January 2018. While the new schools will relieve pressure in some of 
our communities, other areas of the city continue to face enrolment growth and capacity challenges, 
and pressure for additional high school capacity is apparent. 
 
District Responsibilities and Challenges 
As a District, we have a responsibility to meet the needs of students living across the city. There is a cost 
associated with operating and maintaining each square metre of District space, whether it is used or not 
for educational purposes. The District continues to focus on providing the best educational learning 
environments for students in all schools. The operation and maintenance of older schools costs more 
per square metre. An investment into modernizing or replacing our schools is an environmentally 
sustainable approach to providing high quality learning environments across the city. 
 
Ten-Year Facilities Plan 
The Ten-Year Facilities Plan 2015–2024 provides a broad overview of the District’s facilities and 
identifies long-range facility needs. As per Alberta Education guidelines, the plan provides an overview 
of District facility information by sector and includes enrolment trends and projections, demographic 
data, facility condition information, current and projected utilization rates and programming 
opportunities. The plan identifies future modernization and expansion needs, and informs the 
development of the District’s Three-Year Capital Plan. 
 
District Infrastructure Plan 
The Infrastructure Planning Principles will guide development of a District Infrastructure Plan, as a 
framework aimed at transforming the District’s inventory of aging infrastructure assets into outstanding 
educational facilities that facilitate 21st century learning environments, available for all students. The 
plan will identify timelines and goals to provide these high quality learning environments, respond to 
community needs, address deferred maintenance, and right size District space to efficiently meet short-
term and long-term needs. The desired outcomes of the District Infrastructure Plan include the 
following: 

ATTACHMENT I 

Page 42 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
   

2 

• ensure the District has sufficient infrastructure to offer high quality learning environments, 
geographically located to serve District demographics 

• align District infrastructure operations to effectively support the infrastructure management plan 
• asset management plans for all buildings 
• sufficient space available for partnerships and community supports 
• sustainable transportation system designed to serve District needs 
• commitment to continuous evergreening of infrastructure needs beyond 2022 
• create financial efficiencies to ensure District funds are directed to the areas that provide benefits 

for the most students 
 
The District will create opportunities for ongoing engagement with partners, community members, the 
City of Edmonton and the provincial ministries to implement the District Infrastructure Plan. 
 
The Three-Year Capital Plan 2018–2021 
The proposed Three-Year Capital Plan identifies the District’s capital priorities for two project types: 
modernizations and new school construction/major additions. In accordance with provincial direction, 
the overall priorities for these two categories must be submitted as one aggregated list. A separate list 
for each of the categories is included to provide clarity of priorities within each category. It is important 
to note that capital priorities may not be carried forward. The priorities indicated in the Three-Year 
Capital Plan 2018–2021 are based on a review of all current data, with no consideration given to 
rankings indicated in previous years. It is difficult to prioritize new construction projects as each one 
listed is required to meet the immediate and imminent future demands of new growth areas. 
 
The Three-Year Capital Plan 2018–2021 is guided by a set of planning principles to guide decision-
making around infrastructure capital investment. The Infrastructure Planning Principles are as follows: 

1. Accountability 
2. Centres for Educational Excellence 
3. Environmental Stewardship 
4. Equitable Access 
5. Fiscal Responsibility 
6. Service to Community 
7. Supports for the Whole Child 

 
The District places a high priority on providing access to school space for a number of wrap-around 
services to support children and families. These tenants and partners provide a broad range of supports 
and services fostering student success and achievement. 
 
Growth and New Development  
According to the City of Edmonton Annual Growth Monitoring Report, 2016, there has been significant 
residential growth in developing, suburban neighbourhoods. Over 2015, developing areas of the City 
have seen an increase of close to 25,000 people, while mature communities have gained an estimated 
2,200 people, and established neighbourhoods have experienced a population loss of 400 people. 
During this time, the District has worked to accommodate the growing population of elementary school-
age children in developing areas. According to federal census data, the City of Edmonton has grown by 
120,345 residents between 2011 and 2016. Edmonton’s population is expected to grow by another two 
per cent over the next three years, according to the City of Edmonton. From 2001 to 2015, Edmonton 
Census Metropolitan Area had the highest number of young families with small children concentrated in 

Page 43 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
   

3 

developing neighbourhoods, creating pressure for services such as new schools (Attachment III). 
Developing neighbourhoods have experienced the highest population growth and have gained just 
under 85,000 people since 2012 - over 76,000 more than all core, mature and established 
neighbourhoods combined (City of Edmonton, Open Data Portal). Established neighbourhoods have 
seen a decline of about 950 residents while core and mature neighbourhoods have increased by 
approximately 4,600 and 5,100 residents respectively. 
 
Despite various infill initiatives happening in Edmonton, developing neighbourhoods have accounted for 
81 per cent of total residential growth in 2015. In 2015, approximately 55 per cent of all newly serviced 
residential lots were located in new neighbourhoods in the southeast and southwest. Residential 
development trends in 2015 have seen an increase in the number of lot registrations; however, servicing 
activity and building permits issued have decreased from 2014 numbers. Despite the decline of lot 
servicing and building permits from 2014 all three indicators are up from 2010 to 2013 numbers. In early 
2016, the neighbourhood of Aster was approved by City Council. In 2015, three neighbourhood 
structure plans were approved (Marquis, Uplands, and River’s Edge) and one area structure plan was 
approved in the southeast (Decoteau). Approval of these new areas provides new housing options for 
families with children and the District is provided additional locations to offer local educational 
programming, in the long term.  In the short term these students are accommodated within existing 
District schools. 
 
Previously Approved New Construction Projects 
Between 2002 and 2010, no new school buildings were opened in the District despite the significant 
amount of student population growth in new suburban areas during this time; however, ASAP I and 
ASAP II schools were funded in 2007 and 2008. In June 2007, the Government of Alberta announced 
funding for six schools that opened in 2010:  A. Blair McPherson, Elizabeth Finch, Esther Starkman, 
Florence Hallock, Dr. Donald Massey and Johnny Bright schools. An additional three schools were 
announced in 2008 that opened in 2012:  Bessie Nichols, Michael Strembitsky, and Major-General 
Griesbach schools. 
 
A joint collaboration between the District, Edmonton Catholic School District and the Northern Alberta 
Institute of Technology in the Blatchford neighbourhood has resulted in project confirmation. The 
Collegiate School for Science, Technology and Trades is an example of a unique partnership opportunity. 
This project was announced in 2014, and will support the growth and success of students through high 
school completion and beyond by utilizing partnership opportunities to offer students alternative 
educational programming. 
 
Suburban growth within the City of Edmonton accounts for the majority of the residential growth; the 
rate of growth has been substantial and is projected to continue at a rapid pace. This has resulted in a 
significant rise in student population in new suburban areas. Over the course of 2014 and 2015, the 
province announced funding for 14 new construction projects and a 600 capacity addition to Lillian 
Osborne School. Three of these projects opened in 2016:  Dr. Margaret-Ann Armour, Nellie Carlson and 
Roberta MacAdams schools. Eleven new schools are under construction with opening dates set for the 
2017–2018 school year:  Constable Daniel Woodall, David Thomas King, Dr. Lila Fahlman, Donald R. 
Getty, Hilwie Hamdon, Ivor Dent, Jan Reimer, Kim Hung, Michael Phair, Shauna May Seneca, and Svend 
Hansen schools. These projects were all based on priorities outlined in the Three-Year Capital Plan 2014–
2017 and Three-Year Capital Plan 2015–2018.  
 

Page 44 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
   

4 

On March 21, 2017, the Government of Alberta announced funding for two new construction capital 
projects for Edmonton Public Schools. One of the projects is located in the established neighbourhood 
of Larkspur and the other project is located in the developing neighbourhood of McConachie. The table 
below summarizes the two new construction funded priorities from the 2017–2020 Three-Year Capital 
Plan. 
 

 Funded Priorities Capacity Sector Cost 
(millions) 

Year 1     

1 Larkspur 7–9 950 SE $33 

2 McConachie K–6 650 NC $20 

 
This announcement allows the District to respond to the unique challenges in mature neighbourhoods 
as well by investing in the modernization of the historic Highlands School and creating efficient 21st 
Century learning environments. The two new construction projects will help the District provide local 
accommodation for the students residing in these areas. However, we know that the City of Edmonton 
continues to grow and our existing students are progressing through their educational careers. These 
two factors continue to place pressures on providing local accommodation and student spaces in high 
school. 
 
The following table indicates the number of new construction projects requested versus approved 
since 2010: 
 

Three-Year 
Capital Plan 

Number of Projects 
Funded 

Number of Projects 
Requested 

Number of Projects Carried 
Over from Previous Year 

2017–2020 3 27 23 

2016–2019 5* 27 18 

2015–2018 4 (+6*) 27 13 

2014–2017 6 18 7 

2013–2016 0 7 6 

2012–2015 0 6 6 

2011–2014 0 7 3 

2010–2013 0 3 2 
*Project funded only for design. Construction funding for five of these projects was funded in 2015. 
 
In 2016, the District awarded nine tendered construction packages for new school projects opening in 
2017. All of these tendered packages closed below the budgeted amounts. Also, in the spring of 2017, the 
tendered construction package for a modernization and addition at Caernarvon School is following the 
same pattern, indicating that there is a value in investing in infrastructure at this time.  
 
 

Page 45 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
   

5 

Current funded new construction project details are as follows: 
 

Location Sector 
Grade 

Configuration Project Scope* 
Michael Phair School W2 7–9 Scheduled to open in 2017 
Ivor Dent School  NE K–9 Scheduled to open in 2017 
Constable Daniel Woodall School SW K–6 Scheduled to open in 2017 
*Kim Hung School W2 K–9 Scheduled to open in 2017 
Dr. Lila Fahlman School  SW K–9 Scheduled to open in 2017 
Jan Reimer School SE K–9 Scheduled to open in 2017 
Svend Hansen School SE K–9 Scheduled to open in 2017 
*Shauna May Seneca School SE K–9 Scheduled to open in 2017 
David Thomas King School W2 K–9 Scheduled to open in 2017 
Donald R. Getty School SW K–9 Scheduled to open in 2017 
Hilwie Hamdon School NW K–9 Scheduled to open in 2017 
Collegiate for Science and 
Technology HS 10–12 Opening Date TBD 

Larkspur SE 7-9 Scheduled to open in 2019 
McConachie NC K-6 Scheduled to open in 2019 

*Revised scheduled opening date of the school building is January 2018 
 
New School Priorities 
The District has a variety of resources at its disposal to monitor and project student population 
pressures. Stakeholders can have confidence that District decisions are fact based. In calculation of 
capital priorities, the District uses a weighted decision matrix, which is a useful tool for making complex 
decisions, especially in cases where there are many alternatives and criteria of varying importance to be 
considered.  
 
The following criteria were used in determining new construction priorities: 
• number of current students residing in an area and projected students 
• the historical pace of development and the amount of development remaining in an area 
• utilization of the schools that the majority of students residing in the area attend 
• average distance travelled by the students to their designated school 
• accommodation of alternative and special education programs, and partnership opportunities 
• current state of development of the proposed school sites 
• new capacity represented by recently funded capital projects, not yet operational 
 
These criteria take into consideration both current demand and projected future growth in the new 
suburban areas that have a site available and a Neighbourhood Structure Plan (NSP) in place. A NSP is 
required for development activity in a neighbourhood to begin. This document provides the land use 
framework, population and density estimates and the number of housing units by type. In 2015, four 
neighbourhood structure plans were approved, three in the west and one in the southeast. 
 
Although the new construction projects will increase the District’s capacity to accommodate students in new 
neighbourhoods, the pace of residential development in suburban areas has outpaced capital funding for 
constructing local accommodation. Existing schools will face organizational and programming challenges as 

Page 46 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
   

6 

they struggle to accommodate students residing in new neighbourhoods. The District’s Space for Students 
initiative outlines recommendations for certain schools to manage student growth and meet the demand for 
student learning spaces due to large enrolment increases. As the city continues to develop, a growing 
number of schools will face enrolment pressures and similar measures will need to be taken to ensure all 
students are provided with a quality learning environment. 
 
Neighbourhoods or groups of neighbourhoods are given priority if they have the population required to 
sustain a school, keeping in mind that maximum capacities for schools are larger than they have been in 
the past. In some cases, a neighbourhood will not be considered for new school construction if sufficient 
student accommodation options exist in nearby communities. 
 
Within the scope of the District's Infrastructure Plan, the High School Accommodation Framework will 
address the changing needs and shifting demographics within our high school population. To date, high 
school principals have provided initial expertise and perspective regarding possible supports required as 
students in younger grades reach high school. Conversations were expanded through a series of 
community stakeholder consultations and conversations with program society representatives over the 
2015–2016 school year. 
 
While new construction funding will continue to be requested from the Provincial Government through 
the annual submission of a capital priorities plan, the increasing need for new capacity in developing 
areas will warrant exploration of alternative approaches to funding and delivering new school facilities. 
This could include developer participation in new schools, or other creative funding avenues which 
might be possible through discussions with provincial and municipal governments and the development 
industry. 
 
  

Page 47 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
   

7 

The following chart indicates the District’s proposed new construction priorities based on the 
considerations listed above. 
 

Priority 
2018–2021 New Construction Project Location Capacity Sector Cost 

(millions) 

Year 1     

1 Heritage Valley 10–12 – Phase I 1800** HS $79 

2 Chappelle East K–9 * 750** SW $28 

3 Keswick K–9 * 950 SW $31 

4 Glenridding Heights 10–12  – Phase I * 1600 HS $58 

Year 2     

5 Southeast High School 10–12 – Phase I 1800** HS $79 

6 Glenridding Heights K-6 650 SW $20 

7 Rosenthal K–6 650 W2 $20 

8 McConachie 7–9 950 NC $33 

Year 3     

9 Hawks Ridge K–6 650 W2 $20 

10 Edgemont K–9 950 W2 $31 

11 Glenridding Heights 7–9 – Phase II * 800 SW $28 

12 Heritage Valley and Southeast High 
School Additions – Phase II 

600 

600 

HS 

HS 

$9 

$9 

* Unfunded Capital Projects (as of March 16, 2017) 

** Opening Capacity 

  

Page 48 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
   

8 

New School Priorities 

 
 

Page 49 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
   

9 

The previous capital plan had identified in Year 3 a request for a new construction priority in both Aster 
and Orchards South neighbourhoods. We have removed these requests from the plan; however, these 
neighbourhoods continue to be included in our evaluation of new school priorities. There are a number 
of areas developing within the City of Edmonton that are not at the same stage of development as the 
areas included as priorities for this year’s capital plan. In some cases, the rate of construction has slowed 
resulting in other areas becoming a stronger area of focus. 
 
The following map shows areas that will continue to be evaluated for future new construction priorities, 
but will not be included in this plan. 

 

Page 50 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
   

10 

High Schools 
As a result of increasing student enrolment in the District, there is a need to plan for the growing 
number of prospective high school students. Accordingly, the High School Accommodation Framework 
was developed as a means to provide improved balance to student distribution and increase District 
infrastructure capacity as it relates to high school programming. 
 
The High School Accommodation Framework has two principle priorities: 
1. To effectively respond to current and future student enrolment in highly utilized high schools. 
2. To repurpose space to improve efficient use of existing infrastructure in response to underutilized 

space. 
 
Focusing on attendance area high school enrolment and space, the framework is divided regionally and 
includes timely and appropriate stakeholder engagement. The High School Accommodation Framework 
proposes a number of supports for the District that is responsive to student enrolment indicators.  
 
The projected enrolment in attendance area high schools is expected to reach approximately 28,261 
students in September 2025. By the 2021–2022 school year, the projected number of students will likely 
exceed the available space within the District. 
 
Assuming that current enrolment trends hold and there is no drastic demographic change in our city, 
enrolment in the District will stabilize when it reaches approximately 30,000 students in attendance area 
high schools. The District will need at least 8,000 additional spaces to accommodate these students. A 
request for additional high school space has been made by the Board in the last five capital plan 
submissions, not including this years’ draft submission. 
 
There are three high schools included as new construction priorities. These three new high schools 
would provide a total of 5,200 student spaces. In addition, three high schools have been added to the 
requested modernizations. Harry Ainlay, McNally and Queen Elizabeth schools are the only remaining 
attendance area high schools to not receive a major modernization. Including them as priorities will 
ensure that deferred maintenance items can be addressed, that the carbon footprints can be 
significantly improved, and that the facilities can be better aligned with 21st century quality teaching and 
learning environments. 
 
  

Page 51 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
   

11 

High School Priorities 

 
  

Page 52 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
   

12 

The Impact of Infill on Student Populations in Mature Communities 
Overall, it is projected that the population of school-age children in the City of Edmonton increased by 
two per cent in 2016, with significant variation in the magnitude of population change across 
neighbourhoods. According to the School-Age Population Projections study conducted for the District by 
Applications Management Consulting Limited, the core area of Edmonton, encompassing 12 
neighbourhoods, was projected to grow by 4.1 per cent, equal to an estimated 138 school-age students 
(5–17 years). The student population in the 99 mature area neighbourhoods is projected to increase in 
2015 by 277 students from 2014 levels, representing an increase of about one per cent. The 90 
established neighbourhoods are projected to decline in the K–12 student population in 2015. 
 
According to the City of Edmonton Annual Growth Monitoring Report, 2016, developing neighbourhoods 
have accounted for 81 per cent of total residential growth in 2015. In 2015, approximately 55 per cent of 
all newly serviced residential lots were located in new neighbourhoods in the southeast and southwest, 
where the majority of development activity is happening. Residential development trends in 2015 have 
seen an increase in the number of lot registrations; however, servicing activity and building permits 
issued have decreased from 2014 numbers. Despite the decline of lot servicing and building permits 
from 2014, all three indicators are up from 2010 to 2013 numbers. In 2015, four neighbourhoods 
structure plans were approved, three in the west and one in the southeast. In 2014, three developing 
neighbourhoods (Windermere, McConachie and Summerside) had the greatest number of housing unit 
gains for a combined total of 1,971 units. These three neighbourhoods gained more new housing units 
than in all of the core and established neighbourhoods in the city combined. 
 
The District currently has more space than is required within mature areas, and the cost of deferred 
maintenance on many of our buildings continues to increase, and operational costs impact funding 
available for classrooms. The Space for Students initiative will ensure that all students receive the same 
standard of access to high quality teaching and learning environments. 
 
The District recognizes that schools are important hubs for the community. Where a school building is 
no longer required to provide educational programming, the District will work with the City of 
Edmonton and other partners to provide community supports and amenities. Partnerships are also 
intended to augment supports and services provided to the community through school facilities. 
 
Space for Students in Mature Communities 
Two replacement school projects for Delton and Spruce Avenue schools are retained in the capital 
priorities in acknowledgment of involvement in previous consolidation processes. These projects were 
identified through the sector review process in 2009–2010. A detailed review of the facility condition 
assessments indicates support for a replacement school in place of a modernization. When the projects 
are funded, we can determine the best location for the replacement schools within their overall sites. 
 
Several replacements and modernizations are also proposed to aid in dealing with Districts’ aging 
infrastructure. The recent funding announcement for the K–9 Highlands School modernization concept 2 
will help address the need to reinvest in aging facilities with excess capacity. The three remaining 
initiatives currently underway in the city’s mature neighbourhoods in the Britannia, Rosslyn and 
Westlawn areas remain as capital priorities. The initiatives are modelled after two recent projects that 
saw the District engage communities in the Greater Lawton and Greater Highlands areas. The 
engagement process from the Greater Lawton area yielded a community-supported decision to combine 
the three local aging school facilities into one new replacement facility (which will open as Ivor Dent 
School in September 2017), while the communities in the Greater Highlands area supported a 

Page 53 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
   

13 

modernized historic building and re-imagined new addition. These initiatives have provided the District 
opportunities to collaborate with provincial and municipal governments, partner agencies, as well as 
community groups, to contribute positively to community sustainability. 
 
Britannia, Rosslyn and Westlawn cluster areas are included in the capital priorities to support the future 
outcomes of Space for Students initiatives. We hosted an initial meeting in each of these clusters in 
March 2016 to talk about the condition of the 15 schools included in the three clusters.  In May 2016, 
we hosted a second meeting in the communities to talk about potential concepts.  City of Edmonton 
staff joined us to share information about other community projects happening in the area. From 
October 2016 to February 2017, working committees for each of the clusters gathered feedback from 
the second public meeting along with data and other information, to come up with concepts for each 
cluster.  These concepts were presented at a public meeting in March 2017.  The concepts are 
summarized in Appendix I.   
 
The cluster areas will be prioritized based on the utilization and total enrolment within the clusters, 
deferred maintenance costs and operating costs, cost benefit analysis of new concepts versus status quo 
facilities with incremental addressing of deferred maintenance, as well as outcomes of the public 
engagement meetings held in March 2017. The priority of these projects will be determined once the 
feedback from the public engagement meetings in March is analyzed, and they can be specified and 
submitted in a fall amendment to the Three-Year Capital Plan 2018-2021. Similar conversations in 
mature communities will continue over the coming years. To reflect the ongoing work involving our 
aging infrastructure in the mature communities, three additional placeholders are included in the list of 
priorities. The placeholders are intended to accommodate the outcomes from future consolidation 
discussions. 
  

Page 54 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
   

14 

Space for Students in Mature Communities 

 
 
 

Page 55 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
   

15 

Modernization Projects 
Over the past 27 years, the Province has provided funding to the District for modernization projects at 
60 schools within the mature areas. Over $250 million has been invested in mature area schools through 
Infrastructure, Maintenance and Renewal (IMR), Capital Projects or other provincial capital funding 
programs. The District has not historically received modernization project funding on an annual basis. 
The funding for modernizing mature area schools has been consistently below the levels needed to keep 
the District’s entire aging infrastructure in fair to good condition. 
 

Three-Year 
Capital Plan 

Number of Projects 
Funded 

Number of Projects 
Requested 

Number of Projects Carried 
Over from Previous Year 

2017–2020 1 5 2 

2016–2019 0 7 7 

2015–2018 2 9 4 

2014–2017 4 16 8 

2013–2016 0 17 17 

2012–2015 2 19 19 

2011–2014 0 19 17 

2010–2013 0 18 16 
 
Current building condition data is based on a revised provincial, five-year Facility Condition Index (FCI). 
The FCI is based on the deferred maintenance of the building divided by the replacement building cost, 
categorized as good, fair or poor. Condition changes and ratings are reassessed annually. Buildings are 
considered to be in good condition with an FCI of less than 15 per cent; fair condition with an FCI 
between 15 per cent and 40 per cent; and poor condition with an FCI greater than 40 per cent. 
 

 
The District recognizes the critical need to reinvest in our existing buildings. At 50 years, major building 
components such as mechanical and electrical systems reach the end of the expected life-cycle and 
require replacement.  
 
The District believes that all students should have access to a quality learning environment regardless of 
the age of the building or the socio-economic status of the neighbourhood. In that regard, the IMR 

Condition FCI Definition Capital Planning Initiative Definition 

Good Facilities with an FCI of less 
than 15%. 

Adequate for intended use and expected to provide 
continued service life with average maintenance. 

Fair Facilities with an FCI that is 
equal to or greater than 15% 
or equal to or less than 40%. 

Aging components are nearing the end of their life cycle 
and require additional expenditures for renewal or 
refurbishing. 

Poor Facilities with an FCI of 
greater than 40%. 

Upgrading is required to comply with current codes or 
standards and deterioration has reached the point 
where major repairs or replacement are necessary. 

Page 56 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
   

16 

program is an annual block capital grant distributed across the District, based on component by 
component building needs. The IMR program grant funds are separate and distinct from the annual 
three-year capital planning process. IMR funds are used to prevent or address emergent building issues, 
to address health and safety situations as they arise, and to address component by component 
programs across the entire inventory of District school buildings. 
 
Previous capital plans have included modernization projects for District schools based on the provincial 
facility condition, utilization trends and enrolment trends. The provincial audits are produced by several 
different assessors and are completed within a five-year interval. Currently, the District is conducting 
detailed building condition assessments for 153 District schools. The assessments will provide the 
District with a consistent approach to the building conditions from the same point in time. 
 
Edmonton Public Schools recognizes that minimizing environmental impacts will act to enhance its 
operational efficiency. The District has identified the need to monitor and calculate our carbon footprint 
so that strategies can be put in place to manage and reduce it. In 2015, the District EnviroMatters Office 
partnered with EcoAmmo Sustainable Consulting to create an Annual Carbon and Sustainability Report 
in an effort to increase the accuracy and reliability of our environmental footprint data. Having 
consistent environmental reporting and being able to analyze the District’s annual carbon footprint will 
play an informative role in the infrastructure planning process and will lead to sustainable improvement 
suggestions. Formal carbon reports will assist in determining the sustainable cost of all buildings to the 
District, including closed schools, and help the District adapt to the new Alberta Carbon Tax in coming 
years. Environmental report trends can inform new school construction and modernization designs 
based on the District’s specific sustainability needs and areas for improvement. 
 
Modernization projects in core and mature neighbourhoods will allow the District to provide equitable 
access to high quality learning environments to all students, reduce our environmental impact and 
improve operational efficiencies. The following chart indicates the District’s proposed modernization 
priorities. 
 

Priority 
2018–2021 Modernizations Capacity Sector Cost 

(millions) 

Year 1     

1 Delton Replacement K–6 650 C $17 

2 Spruce Avenue Replacement 7-9  450 C $15 

Year 2     

3 Harry Ainlay Modernization Modernization HS TBD 

4 Queen Elizabeth 
Modernization/Replacement 

Modernization or 
Replacement HS TBD 

Year 3     

5 McNally 
Modernization/Replacement 

Modernization or 
Replacement HS TBD 

 

Page 57 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
   

17 

In addition to the requests relating to the Space for Students initiatives (Britannia, Rosslyn and 
Westlawn clusters) and the Sector Review process in 2010 (Delton and Spruce Avenue schools), three 
high schools have been added to the requested modernizations. Harry Ainlay, McNally and Queen 
Elizabeth schools are the only remaining attendance area high schools to not receive a major 
modernization. Requests for the modernization of Brander Gardens, Lansdowne, Gold Bar, Hillcrest and 
Belmont schools have been deferred from the plan, pending the outcome of the building condition 
assessments project. This is recommended to ensure that the broader information gathered from the 
153 building condition assessments can be used to ensure prioritization for future modernization 
projects is based on the comprehensive quantification of need, based on condition. An amendment to 
the Three-Year Capital Plan could be submitted in the fall to the Province to re-integrate modernization 
projects within the priorities based on the outcomes of the building assessments. 
 
The map on the following page indicates the location of proposed modernization priorities, and projects 
removed from the previous plan. 
  

Page 58 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
   

18 

Modernization Priorities 

 
 
  

Page 59 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
   

19 

Aggregated Priorities 
The uncertainty of access to capital funding creates challenges in prioritizing projects, for both 
modernization/replacement schools and new school construction. While future unfunded projects 
identified in the Alberta Budget 2017 – Fiscal Plan – Capital Plan (Attachment V) provide some 
assurance for capital project funding, the timelines remain uncertain. If the draft 2018-2021 Three Year 
Capital Plan is approved, then the projects identified in the provincial plan would need to be amended 
to reflect the new District priorities. Funding for modernization projects has been consistently below 
levels required to maintain high quality learning environments in all of the Districts aging infrastructure. 
The pace of residential development in new suburban areas has outpaced capital funding for 
constructing new local accommodation for the large numbers of students residing in these areas. The 
challenges are intensified when blending the priorities of modernizations with new construction 
projects, a requirement of the submission to the province. Provision of stable, predictable funding for 
separate categories of priorities - new separated from mature (modernizations and replacement 
schools) - as annual funding blocks would contribute positively to the aggregation approach and its 
inherent challenges. 
 
The proposed Three-Year Capital Plan 2018–2021 reflects investment in both mature areas and new 
growth areas in the District’s capital priorities. The following balance outcomes were used to aggregate 
the different project types: 
• balancing the new and the mature priorities by year and priority 
• balancing the value of requests by year 
• balancing the number of requests per year 
• balancing need for high school space with the need for K–9 space 
• balancing existing versus emerging new priorities, when plans go many years without funding 
 
A balance of investment in both mature areas and new growth areas is represented in the proposed 
aggregate priority order presented in the following chart. 
 

Priority 
2018–2021 Aggregated Priorities Capacity Sector Cost 

(millions) 

Year 1     

1 Heritage Valley 10–12 – Phase I 1800 ** HS $79 

2 Chappelle East K–9 * 750 ** SW $28 

3 Britannia or Rosslyn or Westlawn Cluster  
Space for Students in Mature Communities * 

1100-2150 
New or 

Modernization 

C or 
W1 $36 - 79 

4 Keswick K–9 * 950 SW $31 

5 Glenridding Heights 10–12 – Phase I * 1600 HS $58 

6 Delton Replacement K–6 650 C $17 

Page 60 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
   

20 

Priority 
2017–
2020 

Aggregated Priorities Capacity Sector Cost 
(millions) 

Year 2     

7 Southeast High School 10–12 – Phase I 1800** HS $79 

8 Britannia or Rosslyn or Westlawn Cluster  
Space for Students in Mature Communities 

1100-2150 
New or 

Modernization 

C or 
W1 $36 - 79 

9 Glenridding Heights K–6 650 SW $20 

10 Spruce Avenue Replacement 7-9 450 C $15 

11 Rosenthal K–6 650 W2 $20 

12 Britannia or Rosslyn or Westlawn Cluster  
Space for Students in Mature Communities 

1100-2150 
New or 

Modernization 

C or 
W1 $36 - 79 

13 McConachie 7–9 950 NC $33 

14 Harry Ainlay Modernization Modernization HS TBD 

15 Queen Elizabeth Modernization/Replacement Modernization or 
Replacement HS TBD 

Year 3     

16 Space for Students in Mature Communities 
Project as determined by Infrastructure Plan 

New or 
Modernization TBD TBD 

17 Hawks Ridge K–6 650 W2 $20 

18 Edgemont K–9 950 W2 $31 

19 Space for Students in Mature Communities 
Project as determined by Infrastructure Plan 

New or 
Modernization TBD TBD 

20 Glenridding Heights 7–9 – Phase II * 800 SW $28 

21 Space for Students in Mature Communities 
Project as determined by Infrastructure Plan 

New or 
Modernization TBD TBD 

22 McNally Modernization/Replacement Modernization or 
Replacement HS TBD 

23 Heritage Valley and Southeast High School 
Additions – Phase II 

600 

600 

HS 

HS 

$9 

$9 

* Unfunded Capital Projects (as of March 16, 2017) 

** Opening Capacity 

 

Page 61 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
   

21 

The criteria for both modernization and new construction projects are aligned with the provincial capital 
funding criteria (Attachment IV – Excerpt from Alberta School Capital Manual). The following map 
includes all projects on the aggregated list of capital priorities.   

Page 62 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
   

22 

Aggregated Capital Priorities 

 
 

Page 63 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
APPENDIX I 

1 

BRITANNIA AREA CONCEPTS 
  
Working committee groups used the feedback gathered at previous public meetings, along with data 
and other information, to come up with four new concepts that reflect the needs expressed by the 
community. The new concepts were presented on March 8, 2017 at an information meeting. 
  
CONCEPT 1 
BRITANNIA: New construction 

• Britannia becomes a Grade 4 to 9 school with 500 to 600 students 
YOUNGSTOWN: New construction 

• Youngstown becomes a Pre-Kindergarten to Grade 3 school with 400 to 500 students 
Estimated Cost: $43 Million 
 
CONCEPT 2 
BRITANNIA: New construction 

• Britannia becomes a Grade 4 to 9 school with 500 to 650 students 
MAYFIELD: Modernization 

• Mayfield becomes a Pre-Kindergarten to Grade 3 school with 400 to 500 students 
Estimated Cost: $39 Million 
 
CONCEPT 3 
YOUNGSTOWN: New construction  

• Youngstown becomes a Pre-Kindergarten to Grade 9 school with 1,100 students 
Estimated Cost: $36 Million 
 
CONCEPT 4 
BRITANNIA: New construction 

• Britannia becomes a Pre-Kindergarten to Grade 9 school with 1,100 students 
Estimated Cost: $36 Million 
 
 
ROSSLYN AREA CONCEPTS 
A Rosslyn working committee used the feedback gathered at previous public meetings, along with data 
and other information, to come up with five new concepts that reflect the needs expressed by the 
community. The new concepts were presented on March 22, 2017 at an information meeting. 
 
CONCEPT 1 
ATHLONE: Modernization 

• Athlone becomes a Kindergarten to Grade 6 school with 400 to 500 students  
KENSINGTON: Modernization 

• Kensington becomes a Kindergarten to Grade 6 school with 400 to 500 students 
ROSSLYN: New construction 

• Rosslyn becomes a Grade 7 to 9 school with 400 to 650 students  
SCOTT ROBERTSON: New construction 

• Scott Robertson becomes a Pre-Kindergarten to Grade 6 school with 500 to 650 students 
Estimated Cost: $66 Million
 

Page 64 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package

https://www.epsb.ca/schools/spaceforstudents/britannia/meetingnotes/
http://epsb.ca/news/events/publicinputaboutconceptsforschoolsinmatureneighbourhoods.html
http://www.epsb.ca/schools/spaceforstudents/rosslyn/meetingnotes/
http://epsb.ca/news/events/publicinputaboutconceptsforschoolsinmatureneighbourhoods.html


 

2 

CONCEPT 2  
ATHLONE: New construction 

• Athlone becomes a Pre-Kindergarten to Grade 6 school with 500 to 650 students  
KENSINGTON: New construction 

• Kensington becomes a Kindergarten to Grade 6 school with 500 to 650 students  
ROSSLYN: New construction 

• Rosslyn becomes a Kindergarten to Grade 9 school with 1,100 students  
Estimated Cost: $71 Million 
 
CONCEPT 3 
KENSINGTON: New construction 

• Kensington becomes a Kindergarten to Grade 9 school with 1,100 students  
MCARTHUR: New construction 

• McArthur becomes a Pre-Kindergarten to Grade 6 school with 400 to 500 students 
SCOTT ROBERTSON: New construction 

• Scott Robertson becomes a Kindergarten to Grade 6 school with 400 to 500 students  
Estimated Cost: $69 Milllion 
 
CONCEPT 4 
ATHLONE: New construction 

• Athlone becomes a Pre-Kindergarten to Grade 9 school with 800 to 950 students  
KENSINGTON: New construction 

• Kensington becomes a Kindergarten to Grade 6 school with 400 to 500 students 
ROSSLYN: New construction 

• Rosslyn becomes a Kindergarten to Grade 9 school with 800 to 950 students  
Estimated Cost: $70 Million 
 
CONCEPT 5 
KENSINGTON: New construction 

• Kensington becomes a Kindergarten to Grade 6 school with 400 to 500 students  
MCARTHUR: New construction 

• McArthur becomes a Kindergarten to Grade 9 school with 500 to 650 students 
ROSSLYN: New construction 

• Rosslyn becomes a Grade 4 to 9 school with 500 to 650 students 
SCOTT ROBERTSON: New construction 

• Scott Robertson becomes a Pre-Kindergarten to Grade 3 school with 400 to 500 students 
Estimated Cost: $79 Million 
 
 

Page 65 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
 

3 

WESTLAWN AREA CONCEPTS 
A Westlawn working committee used the feedback gathered at previous public meetings, along with 
data and other information, to come up with three new concepts that reflect the needs expressed by 
the community. The new concepts were presented on March 15, 2017 at an information meeting. 
 
CONCEPT 1 
WESTLAWN: 

• Westlawn becomes a Kindergarten to Grade 9 school with 1,000 students 
Estimated Cost: $37 Million 
 
CONCEPT 2 
AFTON: 

• Afton becomes a Kindergarten to Grade 3 school with 400-500 students 
WESTLAWN: 

• Westlawn becomes a Grade 4 to 9 school with 500-650 students 
Estimated Cost: $43 Million 
 
CONCEPT 3 
GLENDALE: 

• Glendale becomes a Kindergarten to Grade 3 school with 400-500 students 
WESTLAWN: 

• Westlawn becomes a Grade 4 to 9 school with 500-650 students 
Estimated Cost: $42 Million 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 66 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package

http://www.epsb.ca/schools/spaceforstudents/westlawn/meetingnotes/
http://epsb.ca/news/events/publicinputaboutconceptsforschoolsinmatureneighbourhoods.html


 
ATTACHMENT II 

 

 
 

Page 67 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
ATTACHMENT III 

 

 

 
 

Page 68 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
ATTACHMENT IV 

 

1 

 

Page 69 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

2 

Page 70 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
ATTACHMENT V 

 

1 

Page 71 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

2 

Page 72 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

3 

Page 73 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

4 

Page 74 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

5 

Page 75 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

6 

Page 76 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

7 

Page 77 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

8 

Page 78 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

9 

Page 79 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

10 

Page 80 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

11 

Page 81 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

12 

Page 82 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

13 

 

Page 83 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 

Recommendation Report 

DATE:  April 25, 2017 
 
TO:  Board of Trustees 

 
FROM: Trustee Bridget Stirling 

 
SUBJECT: Motion re: Sexual Health Education in Provincial Curriculum  
 
REFERENCE: Trustees’ Handbook – Section 5.2.2 – Notices of Motion 
 
   
 
ISSUE 
Notice of motion was served at the April 11, 2017, Board meeting. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Alberta Education is currently undergoing a curriculum review, including Grades 4-9 health and CALM 20 
curricula. Under this area of curriculum, the existing sexual health curriculum offers minimal guidance 
for teachers on aspects of sexual health, including issues such as consent and sexual health for sexual 
and gender minority students. Additionally, while educators are expected to vet classroom presenters in 
any subject, many schools across the province have faced difficulty in assessing appropriate presenters 
in the classroom. 
 
To offer further clarity and guidance, Edmonton Public Schools decided that existing guidance for 
teachers needed to be addressed. The District developed A Guide for Teaching Sexual Health Education 
Grades 4-12 and additionally adopted the Guide for Choosing School Health Resources to better support 
teachers in teaching sexual health. On February 21, 2017, the District also held a Teaching Sexual Health 
Day in partnership with the University of Alberta to offer professional development to current and pre-
service teachers. 
 
The Board of Trustees also voiced its support of consent education in February 2015, recognizing that 
sexual health education should include teaching all students about consent. 
 
Board policy AEBB.BP, Wellness of Students and Staff, supports a comprehensive school health approach 
and reflects an approach to wellness that is grounded in research, informed best practice and a 
balanced approach to delivery. The policy also requires that curricular instruction reflect the School Act, 
including supporting welcoming, caring, respectful and safe environments that respect diversity and are 
inclusive of a range of sexual orientations, gender identities, and gender expressions. 
 
In order to best support instruction that is reflective of recent changes to the School Act and best 
practices in sexual health education, such as those outlined in Alberta Health Services’ 
teachingsexualhealth.ca resources for educators, provincial sexual health curriculum should be updated 
to include current research and best practices in sexual health education. Updated curriculum should 
support the emotional, intellectual, physical, social, and spiritual wellness of Alberta students.  
 
Additionally, educators and school districts should be supported in making choices of classroom 
presenters who can appropriately support evidence-based, age-appropriate, medically accurate, 
comprehensive, consent-based, and inclusive sexual health education. 

Page 84 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package

https://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/policies/trusteeshandbook.pdf


 

 

Recommendation Report 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
That the Board of Trustees write to the Minister of Education in support of ensuring evidence-based, age-
appropriate, medically accurate, comprehensive, consent-based, and inclusive sexual health education in 
the provincial curriculum. 
 
 
NEXT STEPS 
That a letter to the Minister of Education be prepared in support of ensuring evidence-based, age-
appropriate, medically accurate, comprehensive, consent-based, and inclusive sexual health education 
in the provincial curriculum. 
 
Additionally, that, in this letter the Board advocate for a clear set of guidelines for vetting third-party 
presenters to ensure that classroom presentations are in compliance with the provincial sexual health 
curriculum and the requirements of the School Act around welcoming, caring, respectful and safe 
schools for all students, similar to the standards currently used by Edmonton Public Schools. 
 
 
 
BS:sj 

Page 85 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Recommendation Report 

DATE: April 25, 2017 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Trustee Nathan Ip 

SUBJECT: Motion re Funding for the Design of Two High Schools 

REFERENCE: Trustees’ Handbook – Section 5.2.2 – Notices of Motion 

ISSUE 
Notice of motion was served at the April 11, 2017, Board meeting. 

BACKGROUND 
According to the District High School Accommodation Framework presented to the Board of Trustees on 
February 14, 2017, student enrolment and the number of prospective high school students continue to 
grow at a significant pace. Assuming current demographic trends hold, the projected number of high 
school students will likely exceed the available space within the District by 2021-2022. Over the next 
decade, the District will require at least 8,000 additional spaces to accommodate the number of 
students, with enrolment expected to stabilize at 30,000. While the District is considering a number of 
strategies to ensure students are accommodated in the coming years, the construction of new high 
school buildings will be the only impactful solution to ease enrolment pressure across the city, 
particularly in growing areas of southwest and southeast Edmonton. 

The projected shortfall of high school spaces by 2021 underscores the urgent need for new high schools 
to be funded by the provincial government. As it typically takes three years to complete the construction 
of a new high school building, the timing of any high school capital announcement can have a critical 
impact on whether the District is able to address the expected shortfall by 2021. Funding the design 
phase of two high schools this year would allow the District to realize efficiencies in the planning and 
design phases, avoid delays in construction once full high school funding is awarded, and ultimately 
ensure that the required spaces are available to accommodate students by 2021-2022. 

RECOMMENDATION 
That the Board of Trustees write to the Ministers of Education and Infrastructure requesting that funding 
be awarded for the design of two high schools this year, in advance of the next round of capital 
announcements. 

NEXT STEPS 
Prepare a letter for the Board Chair’s signature, addressed to the Ministers of Education and 
Infrastructure, requesting that funding be awarded for the design of two high schools this year, in 
advance of the next round of capital announcements. 

NI:km 

Page 86 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package

https://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/policies/trusteeshandbook.pdf


 

1 

Recommendation Report 

DATE: April 25, 2017 
 
TO:  Board of Trustees 
 
FROM:   Trustee Ken Gibson, Policy Review Committee  
   Trustee Cheryl Johner, Policy Review Committee  
                                    Trustee Bridget Stirling, Chair, Policy Review Committee 
 
SUBJECT: First Reading, Board Policy ACB.BP National Anthem and Flag 
 
ORIGINATOR: Karen Mills, Director Board and Superintendent Relations 
 
RESOURCE 
STAFF: Marnie Beaudoin, Nancy Petersen  

 
REFERENCE: ACB.BP National Anthem and Flag 
  Trustees’ Handbook Section 6.1 – Caucus Committee  

       Board Policy CH.BP – Framework for Policy Development and Review 
 
ISSUE 
The Policy Review Committee is presenting draft Board Policy ACB.BP National Anthem and Flag for first 
reading. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Policy Review Committee reviewed draft Board Policy ACB.BP National Anthem and Flag in 
alignment to ensure the policy is current. 
 
RELATED FACTS 
Revisions to Board policy ACB.BP National Anthem and Flag include: 
• ensuring accuracy of School Act references 
• adjusting language use to reflect the Board’s vision and intent 
• aligning to the current policy template through the inclusion of a Purpose, Expectations and 

Accountability statement 
• District General Counsel has reviewed ACB.BP National Anthem and Flag 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
1. That Board policy ACB.BP National Anthem and Flag be introduced. 
2. That Board policy ACB.BP National Anthem and Flag be read for the first time and approved for 

posting on the District website for stakeholder input. 
 
OPTIONS  
Based on the information provided in this report, the following options are considered most 
appropriate: 
 
1. Approve the first reading of policy ACB.BP National Anthem and Flag at the April 25, 2017 Board 

meeting. 
2. Decline to approve the policy ACB.BP National Anthem and Flag and provide feedback and/or 

request changes. 

Page 87 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package

http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/a/acb-bp/
https://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/policies/trusteeshandbook.pdf


 

2 

Recommendation Report 

  
CONSIDERATIONS and ANALYSIS 
• The current policy ACB.BP National Anthem and Flag requires revisions to align it with the District 

policy template. 
• The scheduled review year for policy ACB.BP National Anthem and Flag is 2017. 
 
NEXT STEPS 
1. A recommendation report will be brought to public Board on June 6, 2017, requesting second and 

third and final reading of policy ACB.BP National Anthem and Flag. 
2. Once approved, policy ACB.BP National Anthem and Flag will be communicated through the 

District’s communication channels. 
 

ATTACHMENTS and APPENDICES  
ATTACHMENT I Draft Board Policy ACB.BP National Anthem and Flag 
 
MB:mb 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 88 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

ACB.BP -- Page 1 of 1 
 

ATTACHMENT I 

CODE: ACB.BP 
 
TOPIC: National Anthem and Flag   
 
 
 
PURPOSE   
 
To reflect the Board of Trustees’ (the Board) responsibility to support the use of the Canadian national 
anthem and Canadian flag in Edmonton Public Schools. 
 
POLICY 
 
The Board believes that the Canadian flag and Canadian national anthem are powerful symbols of our 
Canadian identity as a multicultural and democratic nation.   
 
The Board believes that demonstrations of Canadian identity contribute to a climate of mutual respect 
and trust conducive to student learning, personal development, social living and citizenship within a 
Canadian context. 
 
EXPECTATIONS  
 
All Edmonton Public Schools shall display the Canadian flag and are expected to play or conduct 
regular singing of the national anthem. 
 
ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
The Superintendent shall ensure the District uses appropriate protocols related to the use of the national 
anthem and Canadian flag. 
 
REFERENCES 
FA.BP - Human Resources Framework  
FBCA.AR - Respectful Working Environments 
GGAB.BP - Multicultural Education 
GNDB.AR - Flying and Displaying Flags in Schools 
School Act Sections 26 and 50.1(d) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EFFECTIVE DATE: (00-00-0000) 

ISSUE DATE: (00-00-0000) 

REVIEW YEAR: (0000) 

Board Policy 

Page 89 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

1 
 

 

Recommendation Report 
 

DATE: April 25, 2017 
 
TO:  Board of Trustees 
 
FROM:   Trustee Ken Gibson, Policy Review Committee  
   Trustee Cheryl Johner, Policy Review Committee  
                                    Trustee Bridget Stirling, Chair, Policy Review Committee 
 
SUBJECT: First Reading, Board Policy FBD.BP Designated Holidays 
 
ORIGINATOR: Karen Mills, Director Board and Superintendent Relations 
 
RESOURCE 
STAFF: Marnie Beaudoin, Nancy Petersen  

 
REFERENCE: FBD.BP Vacations and Holidays 
  Trustees’ Handbook Section 6.1 – Caucus Committee  
 Board Policy CH.BP – Framework for Policy Development and Review 
 
ISSUE 
The Policy Review Committee is presenting FBD.BP Designated Holidays for first reading. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Policy Review Committee reviewed FBD.BP Designated Holidays to ensure it is current and 
comprehensive in its scope. The administration consulted the Employment Standards Code and the 
School Act in the development of FBD.BP Designated Holidays, and collaborated with staff from Human 
Resources to verify references to the various terms of employment used in the District. 
 
RELATED FACTS 
Revisions to FBD.BP Designated Holidays include: 
• changing the Board policy title from FBD.BP Vacations and Holidays to FBD.BP Designated Holidays 

to more accurately describe the intent and function of the policy 
• inclusion of Remembrance Day 
• additions of three sections: Purpose, Definitions and Accountability 
• adjusting language to ensure consistency with provincial legislation, the School Act and terms of 

employment 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
1. That Board policy FBD.BP Designated Holidays be introduced. 
2. That Board policy FBD.BP Designated Holidays be read for the first time and approved for posting 

on the District website for stakeholder input. 
 
OPTIONS  
Based on the information provided in this report, the following options are considered most 
appropriate: 
1. Approve the first reading of policy FBD.BP Designated Holidays at the April 25, 2017 Board meeting. 
2. Decline to approve the policy FBD.BP Designated Holidays and provide feedback and/or request  

changes. 

Page 90 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package

https://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/policies/trusteeshandbook.pdf


 

2 
 

 

Recommendation Report 
 

CONSIDERATIONS and ANALYSIS 
• The current Board Policy FBD.BP Vacations and Holidays requires revisions to align it with the 

District policy template. 
• The scheduled review year for Board Policy FBD.BP Vacations and Holidays was 2016. 
 
NEXT STEPS 
1. A recommendation report will be brought to public Board on June 6, 2017, requesting second, and 

third and final reading of policy FBD.BP Designated Holidays. 
2. Once approved, policy FBD.BP Vacations and Holidays will be communicated through the District’s 

communication channels. 
 

ATTACHMENTS and APPENDICES  
ATTACHMENT I Draft Board policy FBD.BP Vacations and Holidays  
APPENDIX I  List of Holidays 
 
MB:mb 
 
 

Page 91 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

ACB.BP -- Page 1 of 4 
 

CODE: FBD.BP 
 
TOPIC: Designated Holidays 
 
 
 
PURPOSE   
 
To support the Board of Trustees’(the Board) capacity to designate additional holiday time beyond 
general holidays. 
 
DEFINITIONS 
 
A general holiday is determined by provincial and federal governments and is legally required to be 
provided to employees. General holidays are often referred to as statutory holidays. 
 
Optional holidays are not legally required by legislation to be provided as holidays, but are provided by 
employers as part of employee collective agreements or terms of employment. 
 
A Board-declared holiday is designated at the discretion of the Board, and is generally used to provide 
additional time in relation to a general holiday. 
 
POLICY 
 
The Board recognizes that the provision of additional time in relation to specific general holidays are 
valued by many staff members and promote well-being. 

 
 
EXPECTATIONS  
 
A. CHRISTMAS AND NEW YEAR’S 

When either Christmas or New Year’s Day occurs at the point in the week where there is only one 
working day between the holiday and the weekend, this working day will be designated as a Board-
declared holiday. The afternoons of December 24th and December 31st will be designated as 
holidays for the staff scheduled to work those days.  
 

B. CANADA DAY 
In years when Canada Day occurs on a weekend, the Monday immediately following that weekend 
will be designated as a holiday for staff normally scheduled to work on that day. In years when 
Canada Day occurs at a point in the week where there is only one working day between the holiday 
and the weekend, this working day will be designated as a holiday for those employees normally 
scheduled to work on that day. 

 
C. REMEMBRANCE DAY 

When Remembrance Day occurs on a work day, the Board shall designate a holiday for staff 
scheduled to work that day. In years on which Remembrance Day occurs on a weekend, the Board 
shall not designate a holiday for Remembrance Day unless by collective agreement or terms of 
employment. 

EFFECTIVE DATE: (24-03-2009) 

ISSUE DATE: (26-03-2009) 

REVIEW YEAR: (2016) 

Board Policy 
ATTACHMENT I 

Page 92 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



ACB.BP -- Page 2 of 2

ACCOUNTABILITY 

The Superintendent shall ensure staff is made aware of general, optional and Board-declared holidays, 
and that the school year calendar aligns with the policy requirements. 

REFERENCES 
FA.BP - Human Resources Framework 
GCA.AR - School Year Calendar 
Employment Standards Code Section 25 
School Act Section 45.1(1) 

Page 93 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package

http://www.qp.alberta.ca/documents/Acts/E09.pdf
http://www.qp.alberta.ca/documents/Acts/E09.pdf
http://www.qp.alberta.ca/documents/Acts/s03.pdf


The following holidays are designated in Edmonton Public Schools, and align with the definitions 
included in FBD.BP Designated Holidays: 

General holidays (in Alberta): 

Holiday Date 
New Year’s Day January 1 

Family Day Varies, but generally falls on the third Monday in February 

Good Friday Friday before Easter Sunday 

Victoria Day Monday before May 25 

Canada Day July 1, except when it falls on a Sunday, then it is July 2 

Labour Day First Monday in September 

Thanksgiving Day Second Monday in October 

Remembrance Day November 11 

Christmas Day December 25 

Optional holidays: 

Holiday Date 
Easter Monday First Monday following Easter 

Heritage Day First Monday in August 

Boxing Day December 26 

Board-declared holidays: 

Christmas Eve December 24 (afternoon only) 

New Year’s Eve December 31 (afternoon only) 

Citizen’s Day Generally falls on the fourth Wednesday in July  (afternoon only) 

APPENDIX I 

Page 94 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Response to  
Request for Information Report 

 

1 

 
DATE: April 25, 2017 
 
TO:  Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Darrel Robertson, Superintendent of Schools 
 
SUBJECT: Catholic Faith Alternative Program 
 (Response to Request for Information #205) 
 
ORIGINATOR: Trustee Michael Janz 
 
RESOURCE 
STAFF: Karen Mills 
 
REFERENCE:  School Act, Section 21(1) 
 
 
ISSUE 
This report is in response to a Trustee Request for Information. 
 
BACKGROUND 
At the February 28, 2017, meeting of the Edmonton Public School Board, Trustee Michael Janz 
submitted the following Request for Information:  
 
That the Administration advise the Trustees whether or not the Minister of Education or School Act 
would permit a public school system to create a Catholic faith alternative program or operate a Catholic 
school within the public school system. 
 
CURRENT SITUATION 
On April 5, 2017, the Minister of Education responded that Section 21(1) of the School Act indicates that 
an alternative program means an education program that:  

a) Emphasizes a particular language, culture, religion or subject matter; or 
b) Uses a particular teaching philosophy, but that is not a special education program, a program 

referred to in Section 10 of the School Act or a program of religious education offered by a 
separate school board.   

 
KEY POINTS 
• It is the department’s position that Section 21 of the School Act does not allow a public school board 

to create a Catholic faith alternative program. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
ATTACHMENT I Letter of April 5, 2017 from the Minister of Education 
 
KM:km 
 

Page 95 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package

http://www.qp.alberta.ca/1266.cfm?page=s03.cfm&leg_type=Acts&isbncln=9780779733941


ATTACHMENT l

Page 96 of 96 of the April 25, 2017 Consolidated Board Meeting Package


	Agenda
	01 - DRAFT - Board Minutes - April 11, 2017
	02 - Strategic Plan Update - Priority 2 Goal Three - Supports for the Whole Child
	03 - Distribution of Funds
	Distribution of Funds
	Distribution of Funds Attachments

	04 - Three Year Capital Plan 2018-2021
	BRITANNIA AREA CONCEPTS
	CONCEPT 1
	CONCEPT 3

	ROSSLYN AREA CONCEPTS
	CONCEPT 1
	CONCEPT 2
	CONCEPT 3
	CONCEPT 4
	CONCEPT 5

	WESTLAWN AREA CONCEPTS
	CONCEPT 1
	CONCEPT 2
	CONCEPT 3


	05 - Motion re Sexual Health Education in Provincial Curriculum
	06 - Motion re Funding for the Design of Two High Schools
	07 - First Reading Board Policy ACB.BP National Anthem and Flag
	08 - First Reading Board Policy FBD.BP Designated Holidays
	09 - Catholic Faith Alternative Program



